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The NAJ & Health Services Co-operative
Credit Union is committed to the
promotion of thrift among its members,
the provision of sound financial advice
and assistance offered through a wide
range of financial services, delivered by
a highly efficient and motivated staff;
committed to excellence.

Mission Statement

Our True Purpose

The NAJ & Health Services Co—operativé’.i Union is in the

business to help every medical professional to rgglize _t_heir
dreams, by offering trusted advice and better value on the
financial services that are available to them.

Trusted Advice means that we will never offer a product or service that
does not put the needs of you, our members FIRST. We ask you
about your long-term goals and take pride in helping you to make
smart decisions that meet your unique situation. Unlike most

financial institutions, we do not have the conflict of trying to serve
the competing needs of customers and investors. You, our members
are our owners. When we help youU, we are meeting your obiectives
as owners.

Help People Get More means improve
your finances. We choose to operate
as a non-profit organization, so we
can share our earning with you, our
owners, instead of outside investors
by offering competititve rates, low
fees, online services, high capital
reserves and more.

Better Value means that although we may not always offer the
lowest cost, we consistently offer a combination of competitive

pricing, personal service and convenience. We are transparent in our
terms and do not engage in teaser rates or highly restrictive
conditions.

Adapted from Delta Community Credit Union
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MISSION and _

MISSION STATEMENT

The NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit
Union is committed to the promotion of thrift
among its members,
the provision of sound financial advice and
assistance offered through a wide range of
financial services,
delivered by a highly efficient and motivated staff;
committed to excellence.

VISION STATEMENT

To provide a solid financial foundation
and a secured future,
by improving the lives of members
within the health sector, and their families,
through quality products and services
to build shareholder value.
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Co-operative Credit Union Limited will be held as a Hybrid Meeting on Saturday,
July 8, 2023, beginning at 9:30 a.m., at the Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union,
2a Manhattan Road, Kingston 5 to transact the ordinary business of the Society.

Notice is hereby given that the 46th Annual General Meeting of NAJ & Health Services

Yours truly,

— H-u_.-__.l:.'.l'. ;

Claudia Wallen (Ms.)
Board Secretary

Agenda

Ascertainment of Quorum
Call to Order

Notice Convening AGM
Prayer

Obituaries

Welcome

Apologies for Absence
Greetings
Reports

SERCORR B L 0 O

Boards of Directors

- Credit Committee

- Supervisory Committee
- Treasurer and Auditor

10.  Resolutions arising from the Treasurer’s Report

Fixing of Maximum Liability
11.  Nominating Committee’s Report and Election of Officer
12.  Nomination to the League’s Annual General Meeting
13.  Any Other Business
14.  Adjournment
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Minutes of the 45th Annual General Meeting
NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Limited
Held on Saturday, July 9, 2022

he 45th Annual General Meeting of

I the NAJ & Health Services Co-oper-
ative Credit Union Limited which was

held virtually and in person was called to

order at 10: 00 a.m. by Mrs. Janet Coore-Farr,
President, and Chairperson for the 45th AGM.

Assertatement of Quorum
Miss Doreen Cushnie, the Secretary, con-
firmed that a quorum was present.

Prayer

Miss Claudia Wallen was invited to pray
which was followed by the recital of the
Prayer of St. Francis of Assisi.

Apologies for Absence
There was no apology for absence.

Birthday Celebrations

Members celebrating birthdays in June and
July were asked to show their hands and the
song ‘Happy Birthday’ was sung in celebra-
tion.

Obituaries
One minute of silence was observed for mem-
bers who had passed since the last AGM.

Miss Doreen Cushnie introduced members of
the Board of Directors, Committees, Manage-
ment, and staff to the AGM. From the Board
of Directors, she introduced Mrs. Janett
Coore-Farr, President of the Credit Union,

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams

2022 ANNUAL REPORT

Dr. Robert Hibbert who was off the island, the
Treasurer Mr. Derrick Tulloch, Assistant
Treasurer Mrs. Charmaine O’Reilly, Assistant
Secretary Miss Claudia Wallen, Mr. Deryck
Graham, Dr. Hilary Jones, and Dr. Audrie
McNab. From the Supervisory Committee,
those introduced were Miss Bereta Thomas,
Chairperson, Mrs. Serica Brandon-Betty,
Mr. Barrington Hibbert, and Mrs. Mendis
Dennis-Vincent. She also introduced the
Credit Committee members, Mrs. Constance
Robert Perkins, Chairperson, Miss Camille
Williams, Mrs. Dion Murphy Nedrick,
Mrs. Mureen Young-Sewell, and Miss
Novlette Arthurs. Members of staff headed by
Dr. Desreen Marquis, CEO were introduced,
followed by Miss Vivienne Wallace Account-
ing Manager, Miss Renee Collins, Loans
Manager, Mr. Ashani Thomas, Marketing
Officer, Mr. Gary Fisher Accounting Officer,
Mr. Tyrese Sterling, Delinquency Officer,
Mr. Lindon Brown, Members Service Repre-
sentative/Relief Cashier, Miss Elvira Austin,
Office Assistant, Miss Annie-Kay Gray,
Administrative Assistant, and Miss Donna
Brown, Cashier/Payroll Officer.

Special Welcome to Invited Guests

The President welcomed persons physically
present and those online. Among those
welcomed were the President of the
Nurses Association of Jamaica, Mrs. Patsy
Edwards-Henry, the Recording Secretary,




Ms. Yvonne Bernard, Mr. Errol Gallimore,
Registrar Department of Co-operatives and
Friendly Societies (DCFS); Ms. Tanesha
Facey, Director of Inspectorate (DCFS),
Mrs. Sheryll Brown, Regional Manager
(DCFS); Mr. Thomas Wint, Auditor, Bogle &
Company, Mrs. Georgia Morrison, Assistant
Vice President, Sales, CUNA Caribbean;
Mr. Robin Levy, Group CEO of Jamaica Co-
operative Credit Union League (JCCUL);
Miss Vera Lindo, Manager, Member Services,
(JCCUL); Miss Melanie Campbell, Member
Services Officer, (JCCUL); Miss Kimberley
Lindo, Member Services Officer, (JCCUL),
Mrs. Marcia Osborne, Group HRD & Admin-
istration Manager, (JCCUL), Mrs. Kleo Errar,
Risk Officer, (JCCUL), Mr. Fernando Facey
CUMAX Wealth Management, Mr. Jeremy-
Paul Bennett, Business Development Repre-
sentative, JCIA; Miss Georgia Hamilton,
Attorney-at-Law, Hamilton & Company,
Mr. Stephen York, Videographer, Stephan
York Videographer, Dwayne Wright,
Resolvel T, Mr. Philip Bulli, Photographer.

At this juncture, greetings were presented as
follows.

Nurses Association of Jamaica

Mrs. Patsy Edwards Henry, President of the
Nurses Association of Jamaica brought greet-
ings on behalf of the Association. She greeted
members of the Board and invited guests,
staff, colleagues, and members of the Credit
Union. Continuing She quoted from Roy T.
Bennett, “Don’t let others tell you what you
cannot do. Don’t let the limitations of others

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.

limit your vision. If you can remove your self-
doubt and believe in yourself, you can achieve
what you never thought possible.” She gave
the history of how the NAJ Credit Union was
started by a set of trailblazer nurses from the
Nurses Association who used a suitcase as
their office because they decided that they
wanted to have a financial arm for the Asso-
ciation. She continued to say that the Credit
Union gathered today to celebrate successes
and achievements over the past year but with-
out challenges and obstacles, there is not
much great success. Continuing her presen-
tation Mrs. Patsy Edwards Henry mentioned
that the Credit Union grappled with the chal-
lenges of Covid 19, but she is proud to be a
part of NAJ & Health Services Co-operative
Credit Union. She said they have stood their
ground and are still standing successfully
today as one of the major partners in the
financial institutions. She indicated that the
Credit Union continues to rise and soar and to
go beyond the call of duty.

She commended Dr. Marquis and the staff for
placing easily visible signs throughout the
year at the front doors to remind members of
special events such as International Nurses
Day, and Nurses’ Week. She also commended
the Credit Union for continuing to move with
what is happening in the global climate and
for having operated and functioned even
though there have been so many changes over
the last two years in what is called the new
norm. She congratulated the Credit Union on
the work they have been doing and wished for
a successful AGM. She pledged her support,
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and the Nurses Association of Jamaica
continues to pledge its support to ensure that
the Credit Union stays a viable entity. In con-
clusion, she wished the members happy
Health Care Workers Appreciation Month.
She said that the Credit Union did a beautiful
video depicting Health Care Workers
Appreciation Month. She wished the mem-
bers a wonderful day.

Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union
League

Mr. Robert Levy, CEO of the Credit Union
League, brought greetings on behalf of the
organization. He acknowledged the Presi-
dent, Mrs. Coore-Farr, the Board and
Committees, the Credit Union’s CEO,
Dr. Marquis, staff, and invited guests from the
various organizations. Mr. Levy said that it
was good to be at the AGM at the Credit
Union’s House, Sullivan Hall. He informed
the meeting that the League is the umbrella
organization to serve credit unions in Jamaica.
He congratulated NAJ & Health Services
Credit Union for managing another year
which has been a challenging year. He
encouraged the Credit Union to continue to
be strong and to serve the members to the best
of its ability. Assurance was given to the
Credit Union that the League is there to
support them in all that it does. He wished the
Credit Union a successful AGM and a
successful year to come.

¢
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CUNA Caribbean Jamaica Limited
Mrs. Georgia Morrison, Assistant Vice Presi-
dent, Sales brought greetings on behalf of
CUNA Caribbean Jamaica Limited. She
greeted the representatives of the Board, the
Management, and the staff, and invited
guests, and members. She congratulated the
Credit Union on another year of doing busi-
ness even though the last two years have been
very challenging with the pandemic. Still, the
Credit Union pressed on and continued to
serve the members, and for that, she congrat-
ulated them.

Mrs. Morrison said that CUNA Caribbean is
about making sure that the family is protected,
and that they can send them home in a very
dignified manner. Over the years the credit
union’s partners have signaled that they think
it is time that they moved up from Plan G
which is the highest of the Family Indemnity
Plan and there are members who would like
to have a higher benefit so that they can have
the kind of farewell they would like to have
for their loved ones. She said that they are
currently in discussion with their regulators,
and it is their hope that sometime in 2023 they
will be able to offer a higher plan type than
Plan G which currently pays a benefit of One
Million Dollars. She stated that the members
of the Credit Union should keep in touch with
the Credit Union so that when the information
becomes available on the higher plan type,
they will be among the first to know.




A few years ago, Miss Morrison said, the
members had reached out and let them know
that it was not only about the death benefit,
but they were also interested in a living ben-
efit, so now they have a critical illness rider
that is attached to the Family Indemnity Plan.
This covers major illnesses such as stroke,
heart attack, cancer, paralysis, coma, and
major burns. She invited them to keep in
touch with the Credit Union, CUNA
Caribbean, and the League to get information.
She said that CUNA will visit the members
and provide them with all the information so
that they can be provided with one of the in-
surances to protect them and their families,
not only for a death benefit but for a living
benefit as well. She thanked the Credit Union
for inviting her and wished the Credit Union
a successful AGM.

Cumax Wealth Management Limited
Mr. Fernando Facey, Financial Solutions
Advisor at CUMAX Wealth Management,
brought greetings on behalf of CUMAX. He
said that he is happy to be at the AGM. He
stated that CUMAX, which was previously
known as the Credit Union Fund Manage-
ment Company recently had a name change
and is now known as CUMAX Wealth Man-
agement Limited. He stated that CUMAX
was the wealth and asset management arm for
credit unions. He informed the members of
the products that CUMAX offers such as the
collective Investment Scheme, the Equity
Fund, and the Re-purchase Agreement. He
commended NAJ Credit Union for perform-
ing well.

o
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Mr. Facey gave the members’ background
information on himself. He said that he is an
accounting graduate, and his background is in
investments as well. He also gave a synopsis
of how long he has been trading on the Stock
Market and the associated financial benefits.
He shared the strategy that he uses in trading
on the Stock Exchange. He advised the mem-
bers why they should invest in the Stock
Market and said there are gains to be made
and apart from salary, members can earn
money to help prepare them for their retire-
ment. He showed a graphical presentation of
the gains made by the Stock Market over the
past five years. He again commended NAJ
Credit Union for performing well. Mr. Facey
wished the Credit Union a successful AGM.

Jamaica Co-operative Insurance
Angency

Mr. Jeremy Paul-Bennett, Business Develop-
ment Representative, brought greetings on
behalf of JCIA. He said one of his favorite
credit unions is the NAJ & Health Services
Co-operate Credit Union. He explained why
the Credit Union is one of his favorite credit
unions. He told how JCIA, and the Credit
Union were able to help a young nurse who
had just gotten her first car and was having
difficulty insuring it because of the high price
of insurance on the open market. He stated
that JCIA and the credit union were able to
help the nurse to insure the car for 50% less
than what was offered on the open market.

Mr. Bennett said that over the past few years,
JCIA experienced inflation. He said that it is
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predicted that the country may be going into
a recession, but members still had to pay
insurance such as health insurance, life insur-
ance, and property insurance when members
come to JCIA they do not have to spend as
much because JCIA tries to find a solution to
all their insurance needs. He said that the
health service workers including the nurses
are JCIA heroes and he stands tall with them
to ensure that Jamaica is a better place. He
ended by informing the members that JCIA is
always supporting the Credit Union because
they are a part of the movement.

Minutes of the 44th AGM

The Secretary, Miss Doreen Cushnie
presented the Minutes which were found on
pages 5 to 19 in the booklet. She asked for a
motion for the Minutes to be taken as read.
This was done by Mr. Egon Fagon and
seconded by Dr. Hilary Jones.

Corrections of Minutes of the 44th AGM
On Page 5, top right-hand corner, first para-
graph, second to last line, ‘the in bracket’
should be corrected to be ‘in the bracket.” In
the third paragraph, the third line beside
Doreen Cushnie should be ‘change’ and not
‘changes.” Also, on pages 5 and 6, Sheryll
and not Sheryl. Page 6, the third paragraph
says, there were 140 members present both
virtually and present in the room. The Reso-
lution was passed with one hundred and
twenty-six voting for the resolution virtually
and fourteen members in the conference room
voting for the resolution making it a total of
140. However, it is recorded in the Minutes
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that three persons voted virtually against the
Resolution, and four persons who attended
virtually abstained. No in-house person
abstained. This needs to be corrected because
if there were 140 members confirmed to be
present virtually and physically and they
voted for the resolution there should be no
abstention or voting against it. Page 8, top
right hand, delete ‘CUNA Mutual’ and replace
it with ‘CUNA Caribbean’. Page 12 under
Outreach Programme, insert the word ‘it’
between ‘although’ and ‘had’. Under Credit
Committee Report, replace ‘edged’ with
‘etched’. Page 13, the third paragraph, line 6,
change the ‘s’ to ‘d’. Also on page 13, line 8§,
change ‘increased’ to 'decrease’. Page 14, the
first paragraph should be ‘Mrs. Pearlie Esteen
Marry’, not Murray. The second to last line
in the same paragraph should be ‘Pearlie
Esteen Marry. Page 15 should be ‘downturn
in the global economy’. Delete the word
‘spin’ and insert ‘economy’. In the same sen-
tence delete the ‘d’ from ‘experienced’. Page
16, first paragraph, third line, change Covet-
19’ to ‘Covid-19’. Under the Credit Union
Movement, 8th to the 9th line, ‘Loans only
grew by 3.57% moving from $88.44B to
$91.60B. Delete the second 3.57%. Page 17,
second paragraph, 6th line, change ‘offers’ to
‘offering.” Same page 17, right side of the
page, line 10 the total delinquent loan of
$1.1M. The figure should be $101M. On
page 18, ‘Proposal for the Fixing of Maxi-
mum Liability’ should be a heading. In the
third line, the same paragraph, delete the ‘s’
from ‘remains. Same page 18 under Election
of Officers, Miss Tresann Thompson presided




over the election of officers. Under Credit
Committee ‘Blondel” should be ‘Blondelle’.
Page 19, same correction ‘Blondelle’ under
the Supervisory Committee in lines 4 and the
second to last line. The last paragraph where
Mrs. Brown reminded the members, to
change Mrs. Brown to Miss Thompson. The
second paragraph, ‘Novellette’ Robinson and
not ‘Novlette’ Robinson. It was noted that the
Minutes were not signed by the Secretary,
which is to be ensured in the future.

The motion for the adoption of the Minutes
was moved by Mrs. Constance Roberts-
Perkins and seconded by Miss Beretta
Thomas.

Matters Arising from the Minutes
There was no matter arising from the Minutes
both in-house and online.

The Board of Direcftors Report

The Board of Directors’ Report was presented
by the President Mrs. Janett Coore-Farr. The
President asked for a motion for the report to
be taken as read. This was done on a motion
moved by the Secretary, Miss Doreen Cush-
nie, and seconded by Dr. Hilary Jones.

Mrs. Coore-Farr said that it was her pleasure
to present the report on behalf of the Board of
Directors of the NAJ & Health Services
Co-operative Credit Union. She stated that the
Credit Union had weathered the Covid Pan-
demic and managed a successful year of
operations. They were successful and skillful
in financial negotiation and proactive actions

"
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were necessary for the changing Covid envi-
ronment. She said they did go through some
difficult times.

Capital Base

The Credit Union continues to work in readi-
ness for the Bank of Jamaica Credit Union
Regulations. One of the main requirements
for licensing under the BOJ Credit Union reg-
ulations is to ensure they meet Capital Ade-
quacy. She informed the meeting that the
Institutional Capital is above the standard set
by the Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union
League, PEARLS, and BOJ’s primary ratio of
8% and 6% respectively. The Credit Union
Institutional Capital stands at 8%, which is
within both the League and BOJ’s standards.

Key Operating Performance

B Members’ Shares went up by 10% to
$388.70M in 2021 compared to 354.08M,
in 2020.

B Permanent Shares grew from 15.21M in
2020 to 15.82M in 2021, a 4% growth.

B Members’ Deposits grew from $304.39M
in 2020 to $356.13M in 2021, a 17%
growth.

B Loans grew from 517.21M in 2020 to
$369.02M, a growth of 40%

B Total Assets grew from $777.41M in 2020
to $861.80M in 2021, an 11% growth.

B Institutional Capital grew from $67.96M
in 2020 to $68.02M in 2021, registering
growth.

B Surplus/Deficit grew from ($6.40M) in
2020 to ($6.49M) in 2021, a 1% growth.
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Risk and Compliance

The Credit Union continues to ensure that the
policies, procedures, and programs to prevent
and detect Money Laundering and the Financ-
ing of Counter-Terrorist activities in compli-
ance with Jamaica’s AML/CFT regulations
are in place and being monitored.

The Credit Union also continues to maintain
a high level of compliance with all regulations
relating to its operation. Throughout the year
2021, the Credit Union continued to work
with the Credit Union League on improving
its AML/CFT framework as well as its Enter-
prise Risk Management framework.

The staff and all volunteers were trained in the
Proceeds of Crime Act (POCA) on September
25, 2021. The training was administered by
the Credit Union League and Shirley-Ann
Eaton was the presenter.

Staff Complement

At the end of 2021, the Credit Union had a
total staff complement of ten employees.
Throughout the year, one staff resigned and
three were employed.

The Board and Management welcomed the
following persons to the staff.

B Mr. Ashani Thomas,

B Mr. Tyrese Sterling, and

B Miss Annie-Kay Gray.

Membership Growth
For the year 2021, 288 persons were received
into membership compared to 169 in the
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previous year, which is an increase of 119
members. The total membership now stands
at 5350 compared to 5062 in 2020. The
Credit Union’s Marketing Team headed by
Mr. Ashani Thomas has been making consid-
erable efforts to market our products and serv-
ices to all the medical professionals across the
island to assist them to realize their dreams.

OBITUARIES

The Credit Union Board and Management
extend condolences to all members and staff
families who lost loved ones during the year
2021. The following members passed on dur-
ing the period under review: Mrs. Edith
Allwood Anderson, Kim Atkins, Veronica
Stewart, Fitzroy Brown, Veva Martin, Ayinde
Musari, Annette Best, and Mrs. Donnette
Gray-Morris.

Meeting Attendance

Mrs. Coore-Farr advised that three Board
Meetings were not held due to the Covid19
Pandemic nevertheless the members attended
the meetings that were held.

League AGM

The Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union
League’s 80th Annual General Meeting was
held at the Credit Union House's Sullivan Hall
on Saturday, June 5, 2021. One hundred
people were in attendance on the Zoom
platform while 16 attended in person. Those
who attended from the Credit Union were
Mrs. Janett Coore- Farr, Mr. Derrick Tulloch,
and Dr. Desreen Marquis.




Corporate Social Responsibility

Despite the challenges faced by the Credit
Union, the Board of Directors saw it fit to
continue to assist individuals and institutions
as follows: Nurses Association of Jamaica
Island Conference, NAJ Summer School,
Hear the Children Cry, Tamar McFarlane
Marshall, and Lillian Lewis McDonald.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board of Directors,
Mrs. Coore-Farr thanked the many individu-
als and organizations who partnered with the
Credit Union throughout the year under
review. These included the Credit Union
League, Credit Union Fund Management,
CUNA Caribbean Insurance, Jamaica Co-op-
eratives Insurance Agency, Centralized Strate-
gic Services, Department of Co-operatives
and Friendly Societies, Nurses Association of
Jamaica, and the Ministry of Health and Well-
ness In-Service Education Unit.

Special appreciation was extended to the
Chief Executive Officer, Dr. Desreen
Marquis, and the dedicated staff members.
Mrs. Coore-Farr said that their performance
throughout the year was exemplary. She also
thanked the Supervisory and Credit Commit-
tees’ members who have worked tirelessly to
help the Credit Union members to realize
their dreams. She also thanked the dedicated
members who have supported their Credit
Union and continue to make it successful.
She said the Credit Union looked forward to
giving continuous dedicated service to this
awesome Credit Union family.

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.

Corrections for the Board of Directors’
Report

The Credit Committee Chair, Mrs. Constance
Roberts Perkins, was also present at the Board
Meetings.

There were no questions for the Board of
Directors’ Report. The motion for the adop-
tion of the report was moved by Miss Beretta
Thomas and seconded by Mr. Egon Fagon.

Credit Committee Report

Mrs. Constance Roberts Perkins, Chairperson
of the Credit Committee presented the Credit
Committee Report for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2021. In reading the report, she said
that once more the Credit Union had come to
the end of another challenging, yet successful
year. The Credit Committee adapted to the
new operations and new way of functioning
as they continued amidst the COVIDI9
Pandemic and its protocols. She introduced
the other team members; Mureen Young
Sewell, Dion Murphy Nedrick, Camille
Williams, and Novlette Arthurs.

Mrs. Roberts Perkins said that the Committee
continued to carry out the mandate of the
Credit Union and by extension, ensured that
all the members realize their dreams. She
stated that it was a privilege to have been
entrusted with the very important task of
assessing and approving members’ loans. She
says it was a challenging year, but the mem-
bers of the Committee remained resolute and
committed to the task entrusted to them.
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She outlined some of the tasks that the Com-
mittee did such as weekly meetings to con-
sider loan applications and attending quarterly
joint meetings with members of the Board of
Directors and Supervisory Committee.

The loans disbursed for the period January to
December 31, 2021, were highlighted in a
graph. A total of 452 loans were disbursed for
the period. Many loans disbursed were per-
sonal loans, a total of 314 with a dollar value
of $49,541,418.72. The highest money value
of $187.3M was for Motor Vehicle purchases
and Repairs. Computer Purchase was the
lowest loan with a dollar value of $50,000.00.
She acknowledged the efforts and dedication
of the Board of Directors, Management, and
Staff and thanked the members who borrowed
prudently over the last year, and encouraged
other members to use the Credit Union more
for their borrowing needs. She said that it was
a pleasure serving the Credit Union for
another year and they will continue to do so
with God’s guidance.

Question For the Credit Committee

The question was asked about the quantum of
loans in money terms that were approved for
the year under review. Mr. Derrick Tulloch,
the Treasurer, said that it was $627.47M com-
ing from $507M in the previous year. Loans
grow by approximately 24% over 2020/21 so
it was a significant year.

The adoption of the report was moved by
Dr. Hilary Jones and seconded by Miss
Doreen Cushnie.

¢

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
2022 ANNUAL REPORT

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.

The Supervisory Committee Report
Miss Bereta Thomas, Chairperson of the
Supervisory Committee presented the report.
She said that the Supervisory Committee con-
tinues to support the vision of the Credit
Union to provide a solid financial foundation
and secured future.

The Supervisory Committee takes pride in
offering their service to our colleagues to
improve their quality of life, she stated. She
said that their scheduled meeting day remains
the first Tuesday of each month. Continuing,
she said that the Supervisory Committee had
its capacity of five members but by the third
week, the membership was reduced to four
because of the migration of one member. For
50% of the meetings, only three of the mem-
bers honoured the obligation to the Credit
Union because of the COVID-19 Pandemic.

Ms. Thomas introduced the members who
served on the Committee, Miss Bereta
Thomas, Chairperson, Mrs. Serica Brandon-
Betty, Secretary, Mr. Barrington Hibbert, and
Mrs. Mendis Dennis-Vincent.

Activities Performed

The Supervisory Committee continued to
perform the following activities as mandated
to manage the internal control of the Credit
Union and make recommendations to protect
the Credit Union from operational risk and
promote financial stability. The Committee
members attended Joint Board Meetings that
were held every quarter but only two of its




members attended these meetings in-house or
via the Zoom platform.

Some of the areas that the Supervisory Com-
mittee focused on were Property Insurance,
Source Recording Documentation, Bank Rec-
onciliation, Property Tax Payment, Staff
Attendance, Petty Cash Verification, Utility
Payments, and Surprise Cash Count. The
Smith and Associate Company was con-
tracted to audit the internal control of the
Credit Union quarterly. The recommenda-
tions from the audit were perused by the
Supervisory Committee and the CEO was
facilitated in several discussions where plans
were discussed, and recommendations made
to improve findings from the audit.

The Supervisory Committee was impressed
that the operations of the Credit Union are in
accordance with the policy and protocol of the
Credit Union League.

Acknowledgement

Miss Bereta Thomas extended appreciation to
the Board of Directors, the Management and
staff, and the members of the Credit Union for
entrusting the Supervisory Committee with
such a vital responsibility to serve and protect
the integrity and assets of the Credit Union.

Conclusion

During the Economic Performance of the
Credit Union, the Credit Union recorded a
deficit of $6.49 million in comparison with a
surplus of $6.40 million. It is believed that the
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deficit for 2021 was due to the negative
impact of COVID-19 and the inflation of the
Jamaican dollar which continue to linger with
us. This resulted in Jamaica’s economy
declining by 4.6 percent in 2021 but is
projected to show some growth in 2022
because some of the restrictions related to the
COVID-19 Pandemic is lifted by the
Jamaican Government. This facilitated
increased revenue for the business sector and
NAJ & Health Services Credit Union.
Ms. Thomas continued to state that the Super-
visory Committee stands in solidarity with the
Credit Union, and observance of good fiscal
discipline, policies, and procedures to facili-
tate improved performance for 2022 must be
followed.

Questions For the Supervisory Committee
Report

Mr. Egon Fagon asked if the deficit that was
mentioned in the report was in relation to
running the organization or that the staff
facilitated it as a bad debt. Mr. Derrick
Tulloch, Treasurer replied. He said that the
Credit Union made a deficit of $417,000.
This is a result of two major impacts, one was
a leak on the premises which took a very long
time to be identified despite writing NWC at
the highest level, and the leak cost approxi-
mately $2M for the water, and sewage. The
other impact was the Income Tax Department
which did a review of some payments made.
The CUNA benefits that were paid to staff
go back several years and was assessed that
they had to pay $2.3M. That wiped out any
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possibility of a surplus that would have been
made for that year. Those were the reasons
the Credit Union made a $417,000 deficit.
However, 2022 up to the end of May is show-
ing positive results and the hope is that it will
continue based on the policies and strategies
that have been implemented.

Mr. Egon Fagon asked if there are any bad
debts. Mr. Tulloch addressed the question by
saying that the Credit Union has been able to
manage its bad debts and as of May they had
no outstanding debt beyond 260 days because
they have been able to get the assets and loans
have been repaid. There is just one major
loan, and they are waiting on National Hous-
ing Trust to supply the Credit Union with the
funds, and they are aggressively going after
it. There are some people who have some
small debts who have migrated, and they are
trying through credit bureaus and other
sources to make sure that they can collect, he
stated.

Mr. Egan Fagon pointed out that there was a
discrepancy in the report as it relates to the
deficit, which is different from what the
Treasurer said it should be and it needs to be
corrected in the report.

The adoption of the Supervisory Report
was moved on a motion by Mrs. Constance
Roberts-Perkins  and  seconded by
Mrs. Sheryll Brown.

The Treasurer’s and Auditor’s Report
After extending greetings to the Management,
staff, and members of the Credit Union,
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Mr. Derrick Tulloch, Treasurer saluted all
health workers as the heroes of our nation. He
asked Mr. Thomas Wint to present the Audi-
tor’s Report.

The Auditor’s Report

Mr. Wint greeted the President, Management,
Members of the Supervisory and Credit Com-
mittees, members of staff, and members of the
Credit Union. He informed the meeting that
the Auditor’s Report was presented from
pages 32 to 34 of the Annual Report which he
read. He stated that he had obtained all the
information and explanation, and, in his opin-
ion, proper accounting records have been
maintained as appeared from the examination
of those records and the financial statements
which agree therein given the information
required by the Co-operative Societies Act in
the manner required.

The Treasurer’s Report

The Treasurer, Mr. Tulloch, said that the
Treasurer’s Report can be found on pages
76 to 81. He asked for the report to be taken
as read. The motion for the report to be taken
as read was moved by Miss Doreen Cushnie
and seconded by Miss Bereta Thomas.
Mr. Tulloch highlighted certain sections of the
report.

Corrections: on page 77 under Credit Union
Movement ‘loans in 2021’ should be $96.93
Billion and in 2020 should be $91.60 Billion.

The Jamaican Economy
Mr. Tulloch said that the Jamaican economy
grew by an estimated six percent. The




inflation target projected by the Bank of
Jamaica was between 4 to 6 percent, however,
the global Pandemic, the disruption in the
global logistic chain issues, and the
Ukraine/Russian war have impacted our econ-
omy. At the time of preparing the report,
inflation was 7.9%, however, the Governor of
the Bank of Jamaica is predicting that infla-
tion will increase between 11 to 15%, and by
mid-2023 inflation should begin to level off.
He said that interest rates have started to trend
up. The movement in the economy is that
banks have started to trend up interest rates
on loans. He said that the Credit Union has
started to look at the broad economy before it
makes any move because it is very critical
that they provide loans at very competitive
rates.

The exchange rate has remained stable, mov-
ing from US$143.27 at the end of 2020 to
US$151.62 reflecting a 5.74% depreciation
over a one-year period. He said that we have
been lucky to have some stability in that area.
When he looked at the movement, he said that
savings began to grow above inflation. It
moved from $105.80 Billion in 2020 to
$116.72 Billion in 2021, a growth of 10.32%.
Loans did not grow on a movement level
above inflation. It moved from $96.93 Billion
to $91.60 Billion, a growth of 5.82%, a little
below inflation. Assets grew a little above
inflation, moving from $136.97 Billion to
$150.40 Billion, a growth of 9.80%.
Membership took a downward trend. It is not
that membership has decreased but credit
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unions have continued to look at their mem-
bership and move their membership into those
that are now delinquent. Membership moved
from 1,034,692 in 2020 to 1,000,157 in 2021,
a decrease of 3.34%.

B Interest income, money that is earned
from interest on loans, is $59.738 million
in 2021 as against $56.312 million in
2020, a variance of $3.426 million and a
difference of 6.08%.

B [nterest expenses remain relatively stable,
it moves from $11.674M in 2021 and it
was $10.713 million in 2020, a movement
of 8.97.

B Net Interest Income, $48.064M in 2021
from $45.599M in 2020, a movement of
5.49%.

B Other Income was $11.723 million in
2021 as against a deficit of $1.514 million
in 2020, a movement of 874.30%.

B Gross Margin, $59.787 million in 2021 as
against $47.113 million in 2020, a move-
ment of 26.90%.

B Operating Expenses increased to $60.204
million in 2021 from $56.291 million in
the previous year. The previous year there
was a loss of 6.95%.

B A Loss of $9.178 million in 2020 and a
loss of $0.417 million in 2021. It was
recovered in 2021.

B The Credit Union made a dramatic turn
around of $9.59 million in 2021.

B This was still not good. As indicated
earlier, there were two major impacts, and
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two impacts were water changes and
retroactive taxes.

Balance Sheet Items

Total Assets moved from $777,415 million in
2020 to $861.798 million in 2021, a growth
of 10.85%.

B Members’ Shares, move from $232.010
million in 2020 to $256.517 million in
2021, a growth of 10.56%.

B Loans after Provision was $627.470
million in 2021 and $507.119 million in
2020, a growth of 23.73%. The Credit
Union did exceptionally well in terms of
loan growth.

B Member Deposits continue to grow
because competitive interest is paid on

these investments, moving from
$304.39M in 2020 to $356.130 in 2021, a
growth of 17%.

B Financial Investments went down

slightly, moving from $139.407 million in
2020 to $129.028 million in 2021, a
decline of 7.45%.

B [nstitutional Capital remains stable at
$68.016 million.

Delinquency

The total delinquency as at December 2021
was $149M. He gave a breakdown of the
categories that the loans were in. One
Hundred and Two Million Dollars or 68% of
the loans were in the 0- 29 days. He said what
is happening is that they are not getting the
funds from the various Regional Health
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Authorities on a timely basis, so it is impact-
ing the 0-29 days. Twenty-Five Million
Dollars or 17% are in the category of 30 to 60
days. The delinquency portfolio showed that
eight million or 5% were outstanding between
61 and 90 days, Four Million, or 3% in the
category 91-180 days, and Ten Million, or 7%
in the 181-350 days. He stated that the hard-
core loans were in the 181 to 360 days, and
they have been able to clear significant
amounts of those loans by using agencies to
assist in collecting funds.

The Way Forward

Continuing, he said that we are living in a
society that is constantly changing and
consequently the Credit Union must change
not only to meet the members’ needs but to
successfully navigate the competition that is
taking place in the financial economic
climate. The economic climate in Jamaica is
one where the cost of living continues to
increase and hence there is a greater need for
our members to have access to funding, so the
credit union continues to look at the various
products that we have, to ensure that we meet
the needs of our members. He said that they
must do a realignment and realignment is
coming in terms of new minds, and new com-
mittees as we move forward, we must support
the credit union to ensure that it continues to
grow.

He informed the members that at the end of
May, the assets had grown to $902 million.




The projection with the help of the members
is to bring the Credit Union to $1 billion by
the end of 2022. The surplus is $3.6 million,
and the projection is that by year-end the
Credit Union should be nearer $10 million.
He said that they needed the members’
support by them continuing to continue to
borrow from the Credit Union for growth and
to give the Credit Union all the support that
they can give.

Conclusion

Mr. Tulloch thanked his assistant, Mrs. Char-
maine O’Reilly, for the support that he had
received, the support received from the
Board, and for being welcomed by the mem-
bers over the past number of years. On behalf
of the Treasury, he extended his appreciation
to the members for their commitment and
dedication. He thanked the Almighty God for
his steadfast guidance and assurance, and the
Board, Management, and staff for their com-
mitment and dedication. The Jamaica Co-
operative Credit Union League in particular
Vera Lindo for her support and the support of
the League, the Registrar of Co-operatives
and the staff for their support, the External
Auditors, Bogle & Company, his various
colleagues on the Board and the various
colleagues on the Committees. He thanked
the members personally for the support that
he had received from them. He said he will
continue to serve on the Finance Committee
to give some support for the strengthening of
the organization. He said over the years he
has learned that leadership, dynamism, and
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teamwork are critical ingredients for the sur-
vival of the Credit Union Movement and
indeed this Credit Union. Finally, he asked for
God’s blessing on the Credit Union and in
Jamaica.

Questions

Mr. Egan Fagon asked what the distinction
is between the loans that were approved dur-
ing the year and the overall loan portfolio.
Mr. Tulloch reminded Mr. Fagon that what he
was talking about was the loan balance at the
end of the year. The Accounting Manager
said what they were talking about was what
was approved by the Credit Committee and
when she added the total over $250M was dis-
bursed.

Turning to another question, Mr. Fagan said
that he knew that it is good to make compar-
isons to talk about the whole movement, but
he was a bit confused at times about whether
the Treasurer was talking about the Credit
Union Movement or the Credit Union. The
Treasurer informed him that he had always
made a distinction so that the members would
know.

Mr. Robin Levy thanked Mr. Tulloch for the
report. He suggested in response to the ques-
tion that had been asked that some further
clarity be considered for future reports. He
said if the Credit Committee had just put, total
loans approved’ he probably would not have
asked that question.
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Mr. Levy drew Mr. Tulloch’s attention to
‘delinquency’ on page 79 where it is stated
that total delinquency loans were $149M.
$102M or 68% of the loans are in the category
0-29 days. He commended him for holding
himself to a higher standard than the League
or the Registrar or the Bank of Jamaica would
hold him to because usually loans in the 0-30
days category, are not counted as delinquent,
only passed due.

Mr. Tulloch asked for a motion for the
approval of the report. This was done by Miss
Sharon Thomas and seconded by Miss
Doreen Cushnie.

Fixing of the Maximum Liability

It was proposed that the maximum liability to
December 31, 2021, remains sixteen times the
capital and reserves. It was moved on behalf
of the Board of Directors by Mr. Derrick Tul-
loch and seconded by Mrs. Janet Coore-Farr.
The motion was carried.

The Standing Orders were suspended for the
Registrar of Cooperatives, Mr. Gallimore, to
bring greetings.

Department of Co-operatives and
Friendly Societies

Mr. Gallimore greeted all his colleagues both
in the room and online and members of the
various committees and volunteers. He said
that it was a pleasure to be at the meeting. He
thanked the persons who have given yeoman
service to the credit union. He said one of the
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focuses of the credit union is the business of
transformation. Most of them are moving to
digitize their services. He said that he knows
that NAJ&HSCCU will be making that move,
but they have some housekeeping to do such
as getting out of their accumulated deficit.
He stated that he suspects that in the next two
years, they will get out of the accumulated
deficit, but it will take hard work, strategic
planning, sacrifice, and prudent management
of the Credit Union to get it back on track. He
said that he wants the credit union to keep up
with the digital transformation as digital
banking will help to transform the credit
union. He mentioned that the credit union was
an aging credit union and while they are
digital transformation, some of the older
members are being left behind because they
do not understand online banking, so we must
make sure that the old system is still there
alongside the digital system. He wished the
credit union all the best.

Report of the Nominating Committee
The Nominating Committee Report was
presented by Mrs. Constance Roberts-
Perkins, Chairperson of the Committee. The
report was found on pages 82 and 83. She
introduced the members of the Committee -
Miss Doreen Cushnie, Board Secretary,
Renee Collins, Loans Manager, and Con-
stance Roberts Perkins, Credit Committee
Chairperson. She informed the meeting of the
terms and conditions under which members
could be nominated to serve and for what
period.

O



Election of Officers

The President invited the representative from
the Department of Co-operatives and Friendly
Societies to preside over the elections.

The Board of Directors

The members of the Board of Directors retir-
ing are Janett Coore-Farr, Derrick Tulloch,
Deryck Graham, Charmaine O’Reilly, Hilary
Jones, Doreen Cushnie, Audrie McNab,
Claudia Wallen, and Robert Hibbert. She
asked if there were any nominations from the
floor and online three times. There being
none, the members on the Board duly nomi-
nated to serve are Adella Campbell (2 years),
Kevin Allen (2 years), Shailee Neish
(2 years), Hilary Jones (2 years), Novelette
Robinson (2 years), Nadine Anderson
Lawrence (1 year), Audrie McNab (1 year),
Claudia Wallen (1 year) and Barrington
Hibbert (1 year).

A motion for the acceptance of the Board of
Directors was moved by Mr. Derrick Tulloch
and seconded by Mrs. Janet Coore-Farr. The
motion was carried.

Supervisory Committee

The members of the Supervisory Committee
retiring are Barrington Hibbert, Beretta
Thomas, Serica Brandon-Betty, Mendis
Dennis-Vincent, and Blondelle Walker.
Nominated to serve are Shirley Hibbert,
Beretta Thomas, Dight Burchell, Mendis
Dennis-Vincent, and Fitzgerald Percy. She
asked both persons present physically and
online three times if there were any other
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nominations to the Supervisory Committee.
There being no other nominations, the mem-
bers duly nominated are Shirley Hibbert,
Beretta Thomas, Dwight Burchell, Mendis
Dennis-Vincent, and Fitzgerald Percy. The
motion to accept the above-mentioned
persons as members of the Supervisory Com-
mittee was moved by Mrs. Mureen Young-
Sewell and seconded by Dr. Audrie McNab.

Credit Committee

One member of the Credit Committee was up
for retirement; Miss Lorna Calder and there
was one new member, Miss Novlette Arthurs.
It was asked three times if there were other
nominations from the floor to the Credit Com-
mittee. There was none, therefore those nom-
inated to serve were Miss Lorna Calder (2
years) and Miss Novlette Arthurs (2 Years).
They will join Mrs. Dion Murphy-Nedrick
(1 year), Mrs. Mureen Young-Sewell (1 year),
and Miss Camille Williams (1 year) to form
the Credit Committee. A motion was moved
by Dr. Hilary Jones and seconded by Miss
Sheryl Silpot to accept the nominees as mem-
bers of the Credit Committee. The motion was
carried.

Nominating to the League Annual
General Meeting

Permission was sought for the CEO, Presi-
dent, and Treasurer to be elected to attend the
League’s Annual General Meeting. The
motion was moved by Miss Doreen Cushnie
and seconded by Dr. Hilary Jones. The
motion was carried.
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The representative from the Department of
Co-operative and Friendly Societies (DCFS)
informed the Board and the other Committees
that within ten days after the meeting infor-
mation relating to all Board and Committee
members should be sent to the League and
other Departments that have an interest in the
Credit Union.

Any Other Business
Drawing of prizes was done.

In closing, the President informed the mem-
bers that having completed her tenure, it was

% Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
2022 ANNUAL REPORT

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.

a pleasure to have served the Credit Union.
The motion for the termination of the Annual
General Meeting was moved by Mr. Kevin
Allen and seconded by Dr. Derrick Tulloch.
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Board Secretary
Claudia Wallen (Ms.)
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Board of Directors’ Report
to the Annual General Meeting
for the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Opening Statement

ellow Co-operators, I am indeed
F honoured to share with you the follow-

ing report, on behalf of the Board,
Management, and the hard-working staft of
our beloved NAJ & Health Services Co-oper-
ative Credit Union (NAJ&HASSCU). This
past year heralded the embracing of new
methodologies for sharing with the wider
community the benefits of becoming a mem-
ber of the NAJ&HSCCU. We are also
pleased, as this is the first full year wherein,
we were able to have more of our meetings in
person since the dreaded COVID-19 pan-
demic. We have endured the challenges of the
financial stressors in our wider society and
look forward to further strengthening the
membership base so that together we will
“help you to realize your dreams.”

Membership

At the end of the year under review, 274
members joined the Credit Union including
15 Future Leaders. The total membership
stood at 5624. The marketing efforts at the
Credit Union during 2022 were a priority, this
was done by Mr. Ashani Thomas along with
other members of staff and volunteers. Sev-
eral hospitals and medical facilities were
visited including dental practices, veterinary
clinics, pharmacies, and health centers to
name a few. The credit union became very
visible on social media platforms such as
Instagram, Twitter, Facebook, Tik Tok, and
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Dr. Audrie McNab
President

YouTube, for which Mr. Thomas should be
commended as he brought more awareness of
the Credit Union to the medical profession
and to the wider public.

Business Environment

The business environment in which the Credit
Union operates experienced shifts because of
the COVID-19 pandemic. Many changes
were experienced in the Jamaican economy
which changed how businesses operate which
influenced the financial sector and ultimately
the Credit Union Movement. Nevertheless,
the economy continues to show signs of
recovery from this negative impact.

Although the year under review had chal-
lenges, the Credit Union grew from strength
to strength in various areas. The service
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quality continues to improve as more mem-
bers are accessing and utilizing the Golden
Harvest and the Family Indemnity Plans.
Several new products were also introduced
such as the Partner Plan, and the Critical
[llness Plan.

Education

Volunteers and staff continue to avail them-
selves of the opportunities for training pro-
vided by the Jamaica Co-operative Credit
Union League (JCCUL).

Strategic Planning Retreat

A strategic retreat was held in the Sullivan
Hall at the League where the operations of the
Credit Union were reviewed, our strengths,
weaknesses, and threats were analyzed, and
strategic objectives for 2022-2026 were
created. Based on the proposed strategic
objectives, proposed initiatives were devel-
oped to ensure the Credit Union’s continued
survival and growth.

Bank of Jamaica Regulations

With the impending BOJ Credit Union Regu-
lations, the Board recognized the need for
continuous monitoring of their operations to
manage the various risks facing the Credit
Union and has asked the Credit Union League
to assist in ensuring that our Anti-Money
Laundering (AML), Enterprise Risk Manage-
ment (ERM), and Counter Financing of Ter-
rorism (CFT) Frameworks are sound. These
services will be performed on a quarterly
basis to ensure that the directives under the
Proceeds of Crime Act (POCA), Money
Laundering Prevention Regulations (MLPR),
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Terrorism Prevention Act (TPA), and Bank of
Jamaica (BOJ) Guidance Notes on AML/CFT
are upheld.

Based on assistance from the League, the fol-
lowing functions were performed during
2022:

B Review and re-develop AML/CFT
policies and related procedures.

B Co-ordinate and monitor the Credit
Union’s compliance with applicable
AML/CFT laws and regulations and its
own AML/CFT policy.

B Provide staff and volunteers with half-
yearly training and testing and ensure that
the appropriate records are maintained.

* Establish a schedule of ongoing training
programs in respect of the Credit Union’s
AML/CFT Policy

B Advise the Board and staff in respect of
proposed or pending regulatory changes
regarding AML/CFT.

B Monitor the Nominated Officer of the
Credit Union and ensure timely submis-
sion of TTRs, STRs, and Listed Entity
reports to the Designated Authority within
the specified timeframe and maintain
them.

B Prepare and submit, on an annual basis, a
comprehensive report to the CEO and
Board of Directors, providing them with,
at a minimum, an overview and evalua-
tion of the overall effectiveness of the
Credit Union’s AML/CFT framework.

Delinquency
All efforts were made to reduce delinquency
to a minimum. Most of the delinquency was




due to late remittances of payroll deductions.
At the end of December 2022, there were 18
delinquent members totaling $9.2 million.

Despite the Credit Union’s effort to keep
delinquency to a minimum, efforts to contact
the following delinquent members proved
futile. Anyone knowing their whereabouts
kindly contact the NAJ & Health Services
Credit Union:

B Sophia Bennett

B Kevaun Smiley

B Keresha Williams-James
B Rochelle Davis-Stewart
Obituaries

Condolences are extended to all members and
their families who lost loved ones during the
year 2022.

Volunteers

The Officers serving our Credit Union follow-
ing the last Annual General Meeting held on
July 9, 2022, were:
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B Dr. Audrie McNab President
B Dr. Adella Campbell -  Vice President
B Mr. Barrington Hibbert - Treasurer
B Ms. Shailee Neish - Asst. Treasurer
B Ms. Claudia Wallen - Secretary
B Mrs. Nadine Anderson-Lawrence

Asst. Secretary
B Dr. Hilary Jones

B Ms. Novellette Robinson
B Mr. Kevin Allen

Meetings

Monthly Meetings of the Board of Directors
and Quarterly Joint Meetings of the Board
and Committees were held as scheduled.

There were 12 Board Meetings and four Joint
Committee Meetings for the year 2022.

The following table depicts the attendance of
the members of the Board at these meetings.

Names Times Attended Zoom Excuse
Possible

Audrie McNab 12 8 No meeting

Adella Campbell 12 4 3 was held in

Barrington Hibbert 12 9 - the month of

Shailee Neish 12 9 - November

Claudia Wallen 12 8 - 2022

Nadine Anderson-Lawrence 12 8 1

Hillary Jones 12 5 2

Novellette Robinson a0 4 2

Kevin Allen 12 4 2
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Representation

The following persons were nominated to
attend the Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union
League Annual General Meeting, which was
held on June 3, 2023, at the Oceans Coral
Springs Hotel in Trelawny:

B Barrington Hibbert- Delegate
B Desreen Marquis - Delegate
B Audrie McNab - Alternate

Delegate

Outreach Programmes

During the year under review, the Credit
Union holds to its social responsibilities and
made donations to the following institutions:

Phillipa Beckford

NAJ Nurse of the Year

Jamaica Youth for Christ

Portmore Self-Help Disability

Brown’s Town Community College
Nurses’ Week, Bustamante Hospital for
Children

Dion Murphy-Nedrick

Bellevue Hospital Health and Wellness
Experience

The Way Forward

The Volunteers, CEO, and staft recognize that
the financial environment is changing rapidly,
and several negative forces are impacting how
the Credit Union operates. It is therefore
important that all critical steps are taken to
mitigate against some of these forces, hence
the engagement of our League to strengthen
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our Anti-Money Laundering (AML),
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM), and
Counter Financing of Terrorism (CFT)
Frameworks. Also, in today’s shifting
economic landscape, NAJ & Health Services
Credit Union must continue to play a vital
role in providing affordable financial options
for its members, while remaining resilient in
the aftermath of the pandemic. The Board and
Management of the Credit Union are taking a
fresh look at ways to fill the coffers: Agility
and openness to new approaches will ensure
that we maintain our lending capacity and
support our members in achieving financial
success.

Appreciation

Again, on behalf of the Board of Directors,
the promise to continue working assiduously
with the Management and Staff of the
NAJ&HSCCU is paramount for the new year.
Ensuring that the Credit Union remains rele-
vant to our members in its nearly 50 years of
existence is our accepted mandate.

Challenges there will be, but none that are
insurmountable, under the stewardship of the
CEO Dr Desreen Marquis, and the Staff of the
Credit Union.

The Board would like to express sincere
thanks to all members of the Credit Union
family, Nurses Association of Jamaica, the
Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League,
CUNA Caribbean, Nationa Union of Co-op-
erative Societies (NUCS) and the Department
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of Co-operatives and Friendly Societies for
your continued support and commitment
during the year under review.

Appreciation is also extended to the members
of the Credit and Supervisory Committees
who ensured that “your dreams were real-
ized”. Again, we thank you for this opportu-
nity to serve.

Yours sincerely
7 7
ek R A | ""I
L " Lol ~.,IIL

Dr. Audrie McNab
President
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Accounting Manager Loans Manager Gary Fisher

Accounting Officer

Tyrese Sterling
Delinquency Officer

Ashani Thomas
Marketing Officer

Dr. Desreen Marquis, JP
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he NAJ & Health Services Co-operative
Credit Union staff went in head on with

Credit Union Team members showcasing their creativity on
Crazy Hat Day held on July 8, 2022. From left to right:

Ms. Elvira Austin, Ms. Annie-Kay Gray, Dr. Desreen
Marquis, Ms. Vivienne Wallace, Ms. Donna Brown,

Mr. Tyrese Sterling, Ms. Renee Collins, Mr. Lindon Brown,

Mr. Gary Fisher and in middle, Mr. Ashani Thomas.

Health Care Workers Appreciation Month:
Health & Wellness Minister, Dr. Christopher Tufton
(middle) pause to take a photo after participating in
the Health Care Workers Appreciation Month activi-
ties at the Percy Junor Hospital in Mandeville. From
left to right: Mr. Marco Williams, Accounts Execu-
tive Sales, Ms. Tesia Douglas, Sales Associate,
CUNA Caribbean Insurance Brokers, and

Mr. Ashani Thomas, Marketing Officer, NAJ &
Health Services Co-operative Credit Union.

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
@ Helping You to Realize Your Dreams

2022 ANNUAL REPORT
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Credit Union Activities

activities in July. Below are photos capturing
some of the activities.

Small Business & Financial Wellness Day

Percy Junor Hospital: (L-R): Mr. Carlton Nichols,
CEO Percy Junor Hospital, Ms. Annie-Kay Gray,
Administrative Assistant and Mr. Ashani Thomas,
Marketing Officer, NAJ & Health Services Co-oper-
ative Credit Union, Mr. Roosevelt Carty, Resident
Physiotherapist and Chairman of Staff Welfare
Committee and Mr. Denzil Williams, Regional Man-
ager and Physiotherapist of Southern Regional
Health Authority.

Ms. Rochelle Hutchinson, Administrative Assistant
at Percy Junor Hospital and Mr. Ashani Thomas
Marketing Officer of NAJ & Health Services Co-
operative Credit Union making preparation in edu-
cating new members about the benefits of being a
member of the Credit Union.
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Financial Statements

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Limited
Financial Statements
For the Year Ending December 31, 2022
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Bogle and Company

CRarfared Accounianis

NoNTiCE Boghe [

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Registrar of Co-operative Socicties

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Limited

(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinlon

We have audited the financial statements of NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union
Limited {*the Credit Union") set out on pages 5 to 39, which comprise the statements of
financlal position as at December 31, 2022, the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes,
comprising significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information

In our opindion, the accompanying financial statements goee a true and fadir view of the financial
position of the Credit Union as at December 31, 2022 and of financial performance and cash
flowrs for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS), and the Co-operative Socleties Act

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (138g), Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent af the
Credit Unlon in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
reésponiibilities in accordance with the IESBA Cods. We balleve that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropgriate to prewvide a basis for aur S pImomn.

Key Auwdit Matters

Key awdit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current pericd. Thede matters wene
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate apinion on these matters.

UMNIT #6. DEAGON CENTRE, 6 S0OLTH AVENUE, KINGSTON 10
|l BAA-A20-0 048 X005 oy BTG-S0 |

vy, bopleandcompseny com

il inlcee beisg hesmiBeomm paimy Coin
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Independent Anditor’s Report {cont*d)
To the Registrar of Co-operative Societies

MAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Limited

(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Key Audit Matters (cont'd)

He_'y' Audit Matbers How we addressed key audit matters

As at December 31, 2022 interest on shares | We assessed and tested the operating
and deposit was 58 509,087.00, effectivenass of the contrals invalved In
representing 11% of total expenses. The recording interest expense in the general |

calculation of interest is done by way of an | ledger and the members’ ledger and found no |
automated accounting programme based | material misstatements.
on paramaters set by management, The
risk of misapplication of this programme
could result in interest expense being
materially misstated in the financial
statements.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
infermation included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor's repaort

Dur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In cennection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information Is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are reguired to communicate the matter to the Board of Directors

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams

@ NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
2022 ANNUAL REPORT =
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Independent Auditor’s Report (coni*d)
To the Registrar of Co-operative Societies

MNAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Limited

(A Society Registered Under the Co-operaiive Societies Act)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)
Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Cao-
operative Societies Act, and for such internal control as management determines |s necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fravd or error.

In prepanng the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Credit
Union's ability to continue as a going concern and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
BOing conceérn,

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Credit Union’s financial reporting
process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

iDur objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance i a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing {I15A) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influsnce the economic declsions of users taken on the basis
of theie financial statements.

A further description of aur responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included
in the appendix of this auditor’s report. This description, which is located on page 4, forms part
of our auditor's report

Report on additional matters as required by the Co-operative Societies Act

We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit, In eur opinion, proper accounting
records have been maintained, so far as appears from our examination of those records, and
the financial statements, which are in agreement therewith, give the Information required by
CE'EF'HJIIW.' Societies AcCt, in the manmer I"E'quil"Ed.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's repoert is Worrick
Bogle .

BOGLE & COMPAMY
Chartéred Accountants

April 28, 2023

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd. @
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Appendix to the Independent Auditor's Report

As part of an audit in accordance with 1585, we exercise profestional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that ks sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in arder to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Credit Union's internal contral,

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
acounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidenoe abtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Credit Union's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our avditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclasures are in adequate, to I'|‘||:|d'|!',' aur apinion. Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Credit Union to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that presents a troe and fair view

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant avdit findings, including any significant deficiencles in internal
cantrel that we identify during our audit

We alzo pravide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors we determine those matters that weee
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current pericd and are therefore
the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matters or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in owr report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interast benefits of

PUCh communication

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams

@ NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
2022 ANNUAL REPORT



> 9 FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

Assptsg Motes 2022 2021

Mon-current assets

Earning:
Financial investmants 5 75,952,751 15,529 784
Loans originated (3 744,905,077 027,469,703

820,857,828 542,999 487

MNen-earning:

Property, plant & equipment 7 48,176 464 49 848 321

Retirement benefit asset 3 5447 158 7,139,158
TSemen sessen

Current assets

Earming:

Financial investments 5 18,058 129,028,020

Loans originated (7] 21,479,054 11,551,733

Liguid assets | 29,245 566 1,990,502

50742678 142570255

Non-earning:

Other assets 10 11,154,278 12,198,696

Cash and bank balances 11 19,923,096 7.042173
31,077,374 _ 19,240,868

Total assets 556.'31}‘-.5@ SE:,?‘:‘J&}.UQU_

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on April 28, 2023, and signed on
its behalf by:

.:"e - : e S
rs. Audrie McMab Mr. Barrington Hibbert
President Treasurer

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

Equity and Liabilities Notes 2022 2021
5 %

Equity:
Members' permanent sharas 12 16,457, 443 15 817,871
Imstitutional capital 13 69,652,027 68,015,588
Meon-institutional capital 14 10,610,390 12,195,553
Undistributed surplus 15 [91,205) (54593, 018)

96,628,565 89,535,994

Mon-current liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities:

Members' shares (voluntary) 16 223,351,259 132,155 188
External credit- lang-tarm portion 17 45, 838,375 22,143,033
269,189,634 154,298,221

Current liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities:

Members' shares (valuntary) 16 204,588 368 256,517,158
External credit = current portion 17 3,386,533 2.729 735
Members' deposits 18 379,334,104 355,737,863

587,309,005 614,984,756

Mon-Interest bearing liabilities:

Payables & accruals 19 3,174,298 2979119
3,174,298 2,979,119
Total equity and liabilities 955_301,505 BEI,I'.I:EFEI,L'JH

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on April 28, 2023, and signed on
its behalf boy:

A Dbt
rs. Audrie McMNab Mr. Barrington Hibbert
President Treasurer

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

Interest income
interest on members loans
Interest on investments

Financial expenses
Lass eninvestment
External credit
Shares & deposits

Net interest income
Movement on loan impairment provision
Bad debts (written off)

ket interest income after allowance for loan loss
Cther income

Gross margin

Dperating expenses

Surplus/{Deficit) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Itemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Pension re-measurement

Total comprehensive income

e

Motes 2022 2021
5 5

66,277,523 S6,088 983

2,368,728 3,149,203

EH.EE,_:-;.':':]_ _59,?13.235

1.237.519 103,621

2,805 234 201,364

_E_.Eﬂ?,ﬂ-ﬂi 9,368,831

__]F!._EE-I,E_J-D_ 11,6/3 816

56,094 411 48 064 370

L 347 872

(9.438)  (1,249.114)

bl 660,696 47,663,128

20 12,186,128 12,123,615

73,846,824 59,786,743

21 (65,918,627) (60,204,246

7,928,197 {417,503)
(L507,000) _ (136,000)

_ (1,507,000 (136,000

6,421,197 (553,503)

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
2022 ANNUAL REPORT
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

MNen -
Permanent  Institutional  Intuitional  Undistributed
Shares Capital Capital Surplus Total
— 5 4 $

December 31, 2020 15,205,745 67,963,988 134821911 (6,402 516) 90,250,128
Deficit for the year [417,503) (417,503)
Entrance fees 51,600 51,600
Fension remeasurement [136,000) [1386,000)
Bad debt recoverable {707,314) (707,314)
Transfer from surplus {327,001) 327,001

Share subscriptions 612,126 612,126
Share transter fund 52,957 52,957
Donation reserve - (170,000 __ [170.000)
December 31, 2021 15817871 68,015583 12195553 [6,493,018) B9,535.994
Surplus for the year 7928197 7,928,197
Entrance fees 50800 50,200
Statutory reserve 1,585,639 (1,585,639} .
Bad debt resere 125,835 (125,835] -
Retirement benafit resarve (185,000 185,000 -
Pension remeasurement (1,507,000 [1,507,000)
Share subscriptions 639,572 639,572
Share transfer fund 34,356 34,356
Dividend reserve 1826 1826
Donation reserve = (55,180) {55,180)
Balance December 31, 2022 - 16,457,443 6'3'_.9;3_2.&2'-' 10,610,350 [(81,285) 96628565

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022
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Surplusf{Deficit] for the year

Adjustments to reconcile lais far the year to net
cazh from operating activities

DeEpréciation

Dividend

Bad debt reserve
Retirement benefit asset

Decrease in current asoets
Other assets
Incrensé in current liabilities

Payables & accruals
Met cash flows provided by eperating activities

Cazh flows from investing activities

Loans to members

Financial investiments

Acgiildition of property, plant and equiprnent
Disposal of property plant and equipment
Met cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financimng sctivitiss
Members shares & deposits

Extermal orecit

Permanent shares

Entrance feas

Appropriations

Met cash flows provided by financing activities

Met (decreaselfincrease in cash & cash eqguivalents
Cazh & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the yvear

Représentad by

Liguid assets
Cash and bank balances

J022

928,197

-
-
T

7]
T

gl

e

&

1,692,000
11,277,649

1,044,418

195,175
12,517,246

{127.362,695)
68,586,995
(609,659)

. E?E-.E‘EIE_
(58,759,469)

U

(#17,203)

1,534, 377

(707.314)
463,001
£72,561

4,799,525

459,337
5,931,423

(121,807,189
12,473, 194
[BS.F51)

_ 759151
(108 662 595)

62,863,522 £6,332 888
24 352 140 {1,494,688)
B39,572 512,126
0,800 21,600

{1,527,824) (253,043)

86,378,210 85248883
40,135,987 117,483 ZE9)
9,032,675 26,514,964
49,168,662 9,032,675
29,245,566 1,990,502
__ 19,923,096 7,042,173
49, 168,662 9,032,675

e

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

1. ldentification & Activities

M A ) & Health Services Co-operative Credit Unian Led- “the Credit Union™

a] The Credit Union is incorporated under the lows of Jamaica and is registered under the
Co-operative Socleties Act. The Credit Union's registered office is located & Trevennion
Fark Road, Kingiton 5, Jamaica.

B} MMembership is restricted to members af the NMurses Acsociation of lamaica and ather
medical prefessionals and their families. The lability of members is limited by shares

cl Mo member may hold more than 20% of the total share capital

d]l The main activities af the Credit Unlon are to promote thrilt among its members by
atlording them an opportunity to accumulate their cavings and to create for them a fource
of credit for provident or productive purposes at reasonable rates of interest

&} The Credit union is exempted from Income Tax under Section 59(1) of the Co-operative
Societies Act and Section 12 of the Income Tax Act

2. Significant Accounting Policies
a) Bazis af preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been used in preparation of the financia
statements are summarised below and have been consistently applied for all the yvears
presented. The measurement bases used are thote specified by International Financia
Reporting Standards (IFRS) for each type of asset, liability, income and expenze. The

measuremaent bases are more fully deseribed in the accounting policles belowes,
titement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Heporting Standards [(IFR5), and their interpretations adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board (1ASB)

Mow, revised, amended standards and interpretations that became effective during the
yoar,

Reference to the Conceptual Frameweark (Amendments to IFES 3) effective after lanuary 1,
2022

Dmerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to 145 37) effective January
1,2022

These new, revised, amended standards and interpretations have had no impact on the Credit
Inion s financial statements,

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
2022 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

2. Significamt Accounting Policies [cont'd)

Basis of preparation (cont'd)

MNew, revised and amended standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet
effective,

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current [Amendments to 1AS 1) effective after
January 1, 2023

This new, revised, amended standards and interpretations are not expected ta have any
significant impact on the Credit Union's financial statements

Functional currency

The amounts stated in the financial statements are in Jamalcan Dollars which is the functional
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Credit Union operates

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value 35 explained in the acco unting policies
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received ta sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technigque,

In additien, for financial reporting purposes, falr value measurements are categorised into
level 1,2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Credit Union can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than gquated prices included within level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly,
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STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
a) Basis of measurement (cont'd)

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements to conform with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of, and disclosures relating to assets and liabilities at the
reporting date, and the income and expenses for the year ended. Actual amounts could
differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
the accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised, and
future period if the revision affects both current and future periods

Judgements made by management in the application of Intérnational Reporting Financial
standards [IFRS) that hawve significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risks of material adjustments are discussed below

l. Useful Lives of Property, plant and equipment

The useful life of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the reporting date, and, if
any expectations differ from previous estimates, the charge is accounted for as a change in
accounting estimates

Il. Going concern

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS assumes that the Credit
Union will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, This means that the
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and financial position assume
no intention or necessity to liqguidate the Credit Union or curtail the scale of operation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

2. Significant Accounting Polleies
b) Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment s recognised as an asset if, and only if
It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity
and the cost of the item can be reliably measured

An itermn of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is measured
at its cost.

The Credit Union recognises depreciation under the expense heading of “depreciation® in
the pariod,

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life

The depreciation is charged using the straight-line methed and is designed to write off the
coit of the assets over the period of their useful lives. The annual rates of depreciation are

as follows:
Building 2.5%
Furniture, flixtures & equipment 10%
Computer and Equipment 20%%

Repairs and maintenance expenditures are eharged te the profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred,

€] Employes benefits

The cost of providing employes benefits s recognised in the period in which the benefit
15 earned by the employee, rather than when it is paid, and each category of employves
benefits are measured, providing detalled guldance in particular about past-e mployment
benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Credit Union participates in a multi-employer defined beneflit plan administered by
the lamaica Co-operative Credit Union League Limited into which the Credit union and it
employvess make contributions. The Credit Union has an abligation ta provide agreed
banafits to current and past employess and effectively places actuarial and investment

risk on the Credit Union
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cant'd)

c)

d)

@ NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.

Employee benefits [cont*d)
Defined Contribution Plan {[cont"d)

The Credit Union also contributes to a defined contribution plan. Contribution By the Credit
Union to this plan s an expenie to the Credit Union and the Credit Union bears no further risk
nar obligation

Financial Instruments: Classification; Recognition; Derecognition and Measurement

& financial instrument is an instrument that ghve rise to a financial asset in one entity and a
fimancial liability or eguity instrument of anather antity

Classification

Financial assats comprize financial investments, loant ariginated, liguid assets, cash and bank
balances and other assets, Financial lkabilities comprise voluntary shares, members deposits
and payables. Equity iz describad at parmanent thares

Recognition & Initial Measuremeant

The Credit Union recognises a financial instrument when it becomes a party to the contractual
terms of the instrument. The Credit Unien initially recognise loans to members and other
assets on the date they are generated. At initial recognition the Credit Union measures a
financial assat or liability at itz fair value. Transaction cost of of2iets o Habilities earried at fair
value thraugh profit or loss are expensod

Classification and subseguent re-measurement

The Credit Union has classitied its financial instruments in the fallowing measurement
Categories:

- Amortised cost

= Fair value through profit or loss

Financial investments

Fimancial investments are financial instruments which are held to collect contractual cash
flowrs and to sell

Fermanent shares held with the Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League are oquity
instruments. The Credit Union has elected to measure these shares at fair value through
profit or loss
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

Z. Significant Accounting Policies [cont'd)

d] Financial Instruments: Classification; Recognition; Derecognition and measurement (cont'd)
Fimancial investments (cont'd)

Voluntary shares, mortgage fund, gilt edge securities and bond are debt instruments and are
mieasured at fair value through the profit or loss.

Loans originated

Loans provided by the Credit Unien to its members are classified as loans eriginated, The
ohjectives of the loan portfalio is to hold and collect coantractual cash flows: the performance
targets of the partfolio are determined by the compliance rate in terms of interest and
principal paymeants sand the kay parfermance index for asch poertfelio is the delingquency ratio
Loan ariginated are measured at fair value through the profit or loss

Liguid assots

A ligquibd asset is an asiet that can readily be converted into cash is similar to cash itsell becauss
the asset can be sold with little impact on its value, Investments are considerad liquid assets if
they cam be readily liguidated, Savings aceosunts held at The National Commercial Bank Jamaica
Limited and Cumax Maney Market Accaunt held with Credit Unlon Fund Management Company
Limited are classified as liguid assets and measurad at fair value through the profit or loss

Cash and bank balances

Cash and Bank balances includes notes and coins on hand and unrestricted Tunds held at other
financial institutions repretenting non-interest-bearing liguid assets owned by the Credit Union

Other assets

Other assets are sundry receivables and préepayments. These are recognized at falr value and

meddured Gl amartiied cost

fMembers” voluntary shiares

The voluntary shares are classified as interest earning liabilities. Interest is calculated and paid
annually based on the weighted average balance on the members account during the year, The
rate of interest is determined by the Board of Directors. Voluntary shares are inltially recognized
at fafr walue and subsaguently measured at amortized cost
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

2. Significant Accounting Policies [cont’d)
d} Financial Instruments: Classification; Recognition; Derecognition and measurement (cont'd)

Members' deposits

These are savings accounts held by the members of the Credit Union. These amounts are
payable on demand, Interest on these accounts is calculated and paid annually, The rates of
interest paid are determined by the Board of Directors. Members deposits are classified as
financial liabilities and are measured at amortized cost

Permanent shares

This represents equity in the Credit Union which cannot be withdrawn but may be
transferred to another member or repurchased by the Credit Union. These shares are
classified as equity and are measured at their nominal value,

Payables & accruals

These ara short term llabilities which are rc-q;u-gmr:cl:l at fair walue and measured at amortized
cost

e) Institutional capital

Institutional Capital includes the Statutory Reserve Fund as well as various other reserves
established from time to time as s deemed necessary by the Board of Directors to support the
operation of the Credit Union and thereby protect the interest of the members. These
reserves are not available for distribution,

The stronger the overall capital position, the easier it is for the Credit Union to deal with future
uncertainties such as asset loss and adverse economic cycles.

f) MNon - Institutional capltal

MNon institutional -:'..‘||!|:I!.'I-| arg amounts approved by the members at their annioal general
meeatings and set aside to facilitate outreach and development activities of the Credit Union
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

2. Sigmificant Accounting Policies (cont'd)

El

k)

il

Revenue recognition
Interest on loans

Interest an loans is recognized when interedt is calculated on the outstanding balamce at the
beginning of each menth, using the reducing balance method. When a loan i classified as
impaired, recagnition of interest in accordance with the ariginmal terms and conditions of the
loan ceases and interest is taken into account an the cash basis

Interest an investments

Interast incame from investments is recognized on the accrual basis,

Lhividend incame

Diwidend income is recognized when the Credit Unlon®™s right ta réceive payment is established
Commission and Fees

Fees and commission income are penerally recognised on a cash basis when the services have
bean provided.

Interest expenses

Interest expense is recognized in the statement of profit or loss for interest bearing liabilities
on the accrual basis using the weighted average method

Oparating expense
Operating expenses are recognized in profit or less upon utilizatien of the service or as incurred
Allewance for loan impairment

an allowance for loan impairment is se<tablisthed bated on lifetime expected credit loss {ECL)
which is the ECL that result from all possible default svents over the expected life of the loan
Loans for which a lifetime ELC is recognized but which are not credit impalred are referred ta as
‘stage 1. If significant increase ineredit risk sines initial recognition is identiflied, the loan moves

to stage 2°, but is nat yet credit impaired. If the loan is credit impaired it moves to ‘stage 3'
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
J1 Allowance for loan impairment [cont'd)

¢

The loan loss provision is derived based on a model which takes account of, among other
factors , the carrying amount and the recoverable amount, being the present value of
expected cash flows, including amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral,
discounted at the original effective rate of interest of the loan and the probability of
default. Provision is calculated as follows

state 1: 12 months loan repayments for loans 30 days past due
Stage 2! Principal & interest for loans 31-90 days past dus
tage 3: Principal only for loans over 20 days past due.

In both current and prior year regulatory provisions are established for loans originated as a
result of a review of the carrying value of loans in arrears and are derived based on the
requirements stipulated by the Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League Limited (JCCUL)
provisioning policy of making full provision for loans in arrears over twelve {12) manths
General provisions ranging from 10 % to 60% are established in respect of loans in arrears
for two (2) to twelve months. Regulatory provision that exceeds International Financial
Reporting Standards is accounted for as in a loan loss resenve,

write-offs

Loans are written of (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering It in its entirety or a partion there of. This generally the case when the Credit
Union determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amount subject to write-off. This assessment is
carried out at the individual asset level. Recoveries of amounts written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Credit Union's procedures for

recavery of amounts due,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

3. Financial risk management

The Credit Linion activities are related to the use of financlal Instruments which invalves
analysis, evaluation and management of risks. The Basrd of Directar is responsible for the
establishment of the risk management framewaork

The Credit Union has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments

- Cradit risk
=  Liguidity risk
- harket risk

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Credit Union if a member or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises primarily from the
Lredit Union’'s loans to members & debt instruments with ather institutions,

Loans 1o members

The management of credit rigk in rezpect of loan: to members and guarantess < delegated
to the Credit Committes, The Committee s responsible for oversight of the Credit Union's
credit risk, including formulating credit policies, establishing the authorisation structure for
the approval of credit facilities, reviewing and assessing cred|t risk, limiting concentration of
exposure to counterparties and developing and makntaining the Credit Union's risk grading
There is a documented credit poallcy in place which guides the Credit Union's credit review
Prooess

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount af financial assets represents the maximum exposure to credit ritk
(before recognition of collateral held) at the reporting date was:

2022 2021
] 5
Leans to members 66,384,131 639,021 436
Liquid assets 20 _24C LEG 1,950,502
Financial investrmants 75,970,805 144,557 804
Other assats 11,154,278 12,198,696
BE2, 754,784 797,768,438
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

3. Finmancial risk management{cont’d)
b) Liguidity risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Credit Unian will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
for its financial labkilities, The Credit Unlon's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as
far as possible, that it will always have sufficient funds to mest its abligations when due under
both nermal or stressed conditions. Prudent liquidity risk management which the Credit Union
uses includes maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, monitoring future cash
flows and lguidity an a daily basis,

The Credit Union is subject to a liquidity limit imposed by the Credit Union League and
compliance is regularly monitored. The key measure used by the Credit Union for managing
liguidity risk I= the ratio of liguid assets to total savings deposit. For this purpose, liguid assets
include loans which are expected to be repaid within the year, cash bank balances, deposits
held with JOCUL and highly liguid investments which are readily converted into cash within
three months. The liquid asset ratio at the reporting date was 0.29 (2021 0.03)

2022 2021
5 £
Caih réetourcas:
Loans (after provision for loan impairment) 5112744 0.388.943
Einancial investments 114,815,678 18,058
Liquid assets 29 245 SR6 1,990 502

Other assars 2.595,537 1,4389.576
Cash & bank balances 19,923,096 7,042,173
171,653,621 15,875, 253

Saving deposits and other liabilities:

Members' share capital 204,583,368 256,517 158
Members deposits 379,334,104 355,737,863
External loans B22. 585 682,434
Payables & accruals 3,174,298 2,975,119

Ratio
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

3. Financial risk management|cont’d)
b) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

The following table presents the undiscounted contractual maturities of financial liabilities,
on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity.

D

_ 2022
Within 3 Ito9 Qver 12 Carrying
= mionths - manths months value
& 5 5 5
Members® share capital 200,308,972 4,279,396 223,351,259 427,939,627
Members' deposits 229927647 149 406,457 179 334,104
External loans 822.585 2,563,944 45 B3R 375 49 224 908
Payables and accruals 3,174,298 3,174,298
434233502 156,249,801 269,189,634 850,672,937
2021
Within 3 ito9 Over 12 Carrying
manths mo !'n_t__r_ts g manths value
5 5 3 e
Members’ share capital 252,620,534 3,886,624 132,155,188 388,672,346
Members' deposits 218977 583 136,760,280 355,737,863
External loans BE2 434 2,047,301 22,143 023 24,872 768
Payables and accruals 2.979,119 - 2,979,119
475,269,670 142,694,205 154,298,221 772,262,096
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

3. Financial risk management{cont'd)

)] Market risk

Market risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate as & result of changes in market prices. These arise mainly from changes in interest
rate and equity prices and will affect the Credit Union's income ar the value of its holdings of
financial instruments, The objective of market risk management Is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while aptimising the return an risk.
hiarket sk exposures are measured uting sensitivity analysis,

There has been na change to the Credit Union's exposure to market risks or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risk.

CUrrency risk

Currency Figk i the risk that the market value aof, or the cash flows fream, financial instruments
will vary because of exchange rate fluctuations. The Credit Union does not deal in forelgn
Currencies nor curréntly hold any securities denominated in foreign currencies. There was th
na expoiure to currency risk at the end of the reporting period

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of
financial instrument because of a change in market interest rates. It arises when there is a
mismatch between Interest- 2Arning assais and intearest-beari ng liabilities which are su bject Lo
interest rate adjustments within a specified period. It can be reflected as a loss of future net
interest income andfor a loss of current market values. Interest rate risk is managed by holding
primarily fixed rate financial instruments. The Credit Union exposure to interest rate risk at
the end of the end of the reporting period was as fallows

¢

d0dd NSNS
Whithin 3 312 Osier 12 Carrying
months manths marths walue
Assets ; £ $ia 5 5
Loans 5,112,744 16,366,310 744 905077 766,384,131
Liguid assats 29 245 566 - 28,245 566
Financial investments 18,058 - 75,952,751 75 970,808
34,176,368 16,366,310 820,857,828 8£71,600,506
Liabilities e | ¥ '
Savings deposits 229 927 647 149 406, 457 -  XT79.334 104
rMoembers' shares 200,308 972 4270 396 223,351,259 427 939 627
External Loans B22 585 D0 2.563 948 45 838,375 a5 2x4 908
431,059,204 156,249,801 269,180,634 856,498,639
Total interest rate gap (356,682,836} (139,8E3.401) 551.668,194 15,101,867
Cumulative gap (396,682.836) ([536.566,327) 15,101, E67
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AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022
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3. Financial risk management{cont'd)

c) Market risk [cont’d)

Interest rate risk[cont’d)

2021
Within 3 3to 12 : li!l'ﬂ:r 12 Carrying
months months months value

Assets $ 5 e 5
Leans 5,388,943 6,162,790 627489703 639,021,436
Liquid assets 1,990,502 - 1,990,502
Financial investments 114, B15.678 14,212,342 15,529,784 144,557,804

122,195,123 20,375,132 642,999,487 785,569,742
Liabilities
Savings deposits 218,977,583 136,760,280 = 355,737,863
Members' shares 252,630,534 3,886,624 132,155,188 3BE 672346
External Loans i 1532._*}3'1 2,047 301 22,143,033 24,872,768

472,290,551 142,694,205 154,298,221 769,282,977
Total interest rate gap (350,095.428) | 122,319,073) 488,701,266 16,286,765
Cumulative gap _(350,005,428) (472,414,501) 16,286,765
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

4, Dperational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated
with the Credit Unlon's procedses, personnel, technology and infrastructure and from external
factors other than financial risks such as arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. The Credit Union's objective when managing
aperational risk 20 a5 to balance the avoidance of financial loss and damages to its reputation with
overall cost effectiveness and to avold control procedures that restrict initiative and creativitg.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of control to identity
operational risk is assigned to the Board af Directars. This responsibility is supported by overall eo-
aparative standards for the management of operational risk in following areas:

Requirements for periodic assessment of operational risk faced, and the adequacy of contrals and
procedure to address the risks identified.

Requirements for the appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation
of transactions;

Compliance with regulatory and other legal requiremenis:

Decumentation of controls and procedures:

Requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action;
Development of contingency plans;

Ethical and business standards;

Risk, mitigation, including insurance where this is effective;

Campliance with the Credit Union's policles s supported by a programme of periodic
LU EE T

Capital management

The Credit Union's objectives when managing capital are 1o safeguard the Credit Union's
ability to continue as a going conceen. The Credit Union defines its capital as Parmanent share
capital, nstitutional capital and special reserve. Its dividend payv-out is made taking inta
aotount the maintenance of an adeguate capital base. The Credit Union is required by the
lamaica Co-operative League Limited to maintain its institutional capital at a minimum of 8§ %
of total assets. At the statement of financial position date, this ratio was 9 % (2021:- 11 %4
which is in compliance with the reguirements.
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AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

4, Operatienal risk [cont"d]

Insurance

FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The Credit Union has in place the fallowing insurance coverage which are deemed adeguate

fidelity bond; life savings & lean protection and general all risk

Related party balances

AL December 31, 2022, members of the Credit Union's Board of Directors, Committee members

and stafl had savings and loans inclusive of interest as stated below

Savings
Loans [inclusme of interast)

Staff Compliment

Mumber of persons emploved

Full tirme
Tempaorary

General Ledger & Subledger Comparison

Balance as per general ledger

Balance a5 per members” ledger

Differences

Balance as per genoral ledger

Balance a5 par mdmbers” |ledger

Differences

202 2021
5 5
34,012,517 23,593 VER
g4 921 975 73,501,973
2022 2021
| 7
1 P
10 B '::I i
2022
Chares Deposits Loans
= 5 =
444 397,070 378,203,517 Shh 07 F 108
444 397,070 378,880 506 755,077 108
- —runoas Dood L e : __1:---”_] AL =hF
2021
Shares Deposits Loans
] & b
404 490,217 305 207 502 543 40% 352
404 490,217 155,312 009 ba43 495 2532
(14,417)
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4. Dperational rizk (cont'd)

Collaterals

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

The Credit Unien holds collateral against loans to members in the form of mortgage interests over
property, lien over motor vehicles, other registered securities over assets, hypothecation of shares

held in the Credit Union and guarantoss

Estimates of fair values are based on value of callateral

assessed at the time of borrowing and are generally not updated except when a loan is individually

assessad a5 impaired

5. Financial investments

Pearmanent shares
Ordinary sharas
Equity Instruments-Quoted
Ordinary shares
Debt Instruments
Cumax Maney Market Fund
Income portfolio
JCCUL Liguidity Reserve

Egquity Instrument $-U_I"|ﬂl~lt|1.l':|:|'
Permanent shares
Ordinary shares

Equity Instruments-Ouoted

Ordinary shares

Debt Inttruments
Cumax Money Marker Fund
Incame partfalia
Wealth Management fund
Capital Growth Fund

¢

_ X022
WWEEL 3 ¥
il 3 o 12 months Owver 1 year bRIEVINE
manths Whlus
5 3 s 5
- 2,007 555 2,007 555
930 480 930 480
- - 1,853 DE& 1,853 066
18,058 - 18,058
- - 14,417 645 14,417 645
] 56,744,005 56,744, 005
18,058 75,952,751 75,970,809
2021
I ; I
) 3 to 12 months Chwer 1 year LSRNy
months Wi
5 5 5 5
- - 2,007 555 2:.007.555
9304980 230,480
2,606,726 2,606,726
114,815,678 - 114,.E15,678
14,212 342 14,212 342
9 o5 3116 9 oL?. 316
. 27,707 27,707
114 815,678 14,212 342 15,520 784 144 557 804
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

B. Loans originated

<l = 20332
Within 3 It012  1teS Overs  Toral
Months Months Years Years Value
4 5 5 5 5

Principal 813,444 18002561 266,231,442 480,029 661 75,077,108

Interest receivable 4,299 300 - . - 4,299,300

Less provisian for loan loss - (1,636,251) (1,356,026) . (2,992 377

Carrying value _'_Ll_l!,?d-i lE:,EE-E-.l".Pﬂ J‘E-‘-'-.E?'.El.,ﬂ-]ﬁ 480,029 661 fB86,384,131

= =
Within 3 ito12 1105 Over 5 Total
- _Egg]_h_s :'_'.’!l:lrths Yoars Years value
5 5 5 5 E
Principal 1,294,759 14,730,720 261,259.980 366,209,723 B43,495,252
Interest recervabla 4,084,184 - - 4,094,184
Less provision for loan loss - - (8,568,000) e - (8,568.000]
Carrying value 5,388,943 6,162,780 261,259,980 366,200,723 B39,021.436
Movement in loan loss provision
2022 2021
L] 5

Allowance for loan loss at the beginning of year 8,568,000 9,415,872

Decrease in provision (5,575, 723) (B47.872]
Net provision at December 31, 2992277 8,568,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

6. Loans originated (cant"d)

Provision for loan loss

The credit union provides for loan loss using the expected credit loss model. At the reporting date

the provision for loan loss was as fallows:

2022
‘Number D
of Expected Caleulated
| Stages | Aging Loans Credit Loss | Provision
[ | Less than 2
Stage 1 | months 517 | 60,751,334 | 2,553,526
Stage 2 | 2 - 3 months - 29 | 2,386,997 211,915
| Stage 3 | over 3 months i4 | 1,808,376 246,436
Total | 560 | 64,946,707 | 2,992,277
2021
Mumber
of Expected Calculated
atages | Aging Loans Credit Loss | Provision
B Lessthan2
Stage 1 | months 501 | 68,205,209 | 6,456,062
Stage 2 | 2-3months _ 25 | 5,042,238 | 1,083,917
Stage 3 | over 3 months 18 | 3,076,113 | 1,028,021
Total sd44 | 77,023,560 | 8,568,000

¢
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

B, Loans originatéed [cont"d)

Regulatary provigian

Provision required by the rules of the Jlarmaica Co-operative Credit Union League Limited are stated
bexlowe for comparative purposes

2022
Total Tatal
Savings
Maonths in Arrears Number | Delinguent Held Expoture Provision
of loans loans
I s 3 5 b
Less than 2 months | 179 | 211,625,629 | 274,696,098 '[5 3,070.469] .
2-3 months 7 3,824,936 3,295 859 529 037 3B2.494 | 10%
4-6 manths 7 3,681,725 4,769,953 (588,228) 1,104,518 | 30%
7- 12 moenths ¥ £498,731 £ 14,689 34,042 149,239 GBS
Over 12 months 2| 1,481,861 1,591,463 (109,602 1,481,861 | 100%
Totals 197 | 220,862,882 | 284,068,102 | (63.205,220) | 3,118,111
2021
| Total Total — -|
tonths in Arrears Number | Delinguent Held Exposure Provision
_ | oflomss | Soune |
i 5 > ® J . 2.
Less than 2 moniths | 158 | 126,633 217 | 155,007,754 [(32,.374,537) -
2=3 months 11 B.O18. 717 6,571,368 1,447 349 801,872 105
A4-6 maonths | ] 4 767,711 3,106,287 1,661 424 1,430,313 305
7- 12 manths | ] 0 R827.122 2,640,521 7.186,601 5 BOE,273 B0
Ower 12 months ; - - - - . 10
Tatals | 184 | 140 246,767 | 171,325,930 (22079 163) 2128 458 | |
Laan loss reserye
2022 2021
5 5
Regulatory provision 3,118,111 8,108,453
Expocted credit long (2, 992.277) [B.5&8 000)
125 B34

Mo loan o resaryd wWis faguired in prios year 58 expected credit loss exceadad regulatory proviskon
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STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022
7. Property, plant & egquipment
Furniture
il T |

B fixtures aolstiild Computers o
At cost 5 5 & 5
Balance December 31, 2020 3,918,606 0,281,508 2,089 218 66,269,332
Addition during 2021 gLel 78, 200 87 751
Assets written off (663,235) (95,916) (759,151)
Balance December 31, 2021 3,264,922 60,281,508 2,051,502 65,597,932
Addition during 2022 609,659 609,659
Azsets written off (215 426) (410,464) __[61_3;5.39:]|
Balance December 31, 2022 3,040,496 B0 281508 2,250,697 E.‘-‘-_@E 1,701
Sccumulated depreciation
Balance Decernber 31, 2020 2,845,900 10,794,741 574,593 14,215,234
Charge for the year 2021 344 585 1,507,038 441,979 2,293 602
Depreciation written off (663,235) 195,930) {759,225)
Balance December 31, 2021 2,527,250 12,301 779 920,582 15,749,611
Depreciation charged 298 489 1,507,113 477,921 2,283,523
Depreciation written off (216,493) r (411,404) (627,897)
Balance December 31, 2022 2,609,246 13 808 892 SE7,099 _ l?dﬂ-ﬁli
Carrying value -5
December 31, 2022 440,250 46472 616 1,263,598 48,176 4b4
December 31, 2021 737,672 47,979,729 1,130,920 49,848,321

B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

8. Retirement benefit asset

Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position

2022 2021
5000 5000
Present Value of abligations 21,204 33,061
Fair value of plan assets _(41,808)  _140.200)
{20, 604) (7,139)
Effect of the asset ceiling 15,157
Asget récognized in the statement of financial pasition (B 447) (7 134
Povement in net liability [asset)
2023 £021
5000 5'000
Opening Met Liability (Asset) 7, 155) [7.602)
Pension Expense {(Income) 1,263 1,354
Tatal Remeasurement included in OC) 1,507 136
Employers Contributions (1,078} (1.037)
[5,447) I;T-‘.IEIB]I
Discount rate at beginning of period 8.00% 9. 00
Expected future salary increases 5500 6. 50%
Expected future pension increases 1.75% A4.50%
Movement in the present value of the ablipation.
2022 2021
='000 5000
Balance at the beginning of the period 33,061 30,436
Employar’s current service cost 1,688 1,919
Employees' contributions &7 b4
Interest cost 2,645 2,682
Benefits paid - {1,267)
Actuarial loss -experience adjustments [AG4] (2,513}
Actuarial |gain) loss - changes in financial assumptions (16393} 1,162
Present value of obligations at the end of the period 21,205 33,061

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd. @
= 2022 ANNUAL REPORT



FINANCIAL ; <

STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

8, Retirament benelit adset (cont d)

Movement in the fair value of the plan assets.

2032 2031

S'000 5000
Fair walue of plan assets at the beginning of the period a0, 200 38,038
Employess’ contributions 674 B2
Emplower™s contributlons 1,073 1,027
Intafast income 3,286 1. 441
Benefits paid - {1,267)
Administrative cxpenses [215] {154)
Actuarial lods on plan assets ':..3-_E_E'_ € _-I_'..ﬂﬂi-'l
Fair value plan assels 50 the and of period 41 803 40, 200
Plan of assets consist af the following assets

2022 2021

5000 5000
Debentured 13,755 10,451
Cuoted equities 9,277 9,199
Investment properties 9,287 9,172
Debentures-LUSD 2,998 5,298
Repurchase agreaments 3,944 3,592
Uit Truest 2,277 2,129
Reh] estate invedtment trosts 517 453
Caortificates of deposits-USD 1] 135
Met current assels [2-1-_-'-'_|_ {5329)

41 808 40, 200

Expense recognized in profit or loss

rLIFr 2021

5000 5000
Emiploysers’ cuffenl serdce oo 1,688 1.91%
interest cost on obligation 2,645 2 682
Interest income on plan assets 13, 286) |3, 441}
Administrative expenses £ 1k 134

1,263 1,354

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams ’
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

B. Retirement benefit asset (cont'd)

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income

032 2021
%' 000 5'000
Actuarial {gain) on obligation {16.863) (1,351]
Actuarial loss (gain] on plan assets 3,213 1,487
Change in the effect of asset ceiling 15,157 -
1,507 1 ':!F
Principal actuarial assumptions
2022 20401
5000 5000
Discount rate 13.00% 8.00%
Expected future salary increases 1.50% 5.50%
Expected future pension increases G 50% 3.75%
sensitivity analysis of key economic assumptions
2022 022 201 2001
%'000 5000 5'000 5'000
Assumptions +1% -1% #1% -1%
Discount rate (2,977) 3768 [5,957) 7.E56
Future salary increases 1,514 {1,314} 3,210 {2,736)
Future pension increases 1,954 {1,670} 3,847 (3,253)
Liability duration
2022 2021
5000 5'000
ACtive members 19.4 3.4
Differed pensioners 10.2 11.9
All participants 17.4 21.6

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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9. Liguid assets

Matlonal Commercial Bank Limited

SavINEs BoooEnts

Lurrént account

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

Jamaica Co-operative Cradit Union League Limited

Demand deposit

10. Other assets

Staff loans

Ri=rit

Bad debt recoverabile
Other recelvable
risappropriation

11. Caszh B bank balances

Bank-current accounts

Cash in hand

12, Permanent Shares

Balance at December 31

Add subscription

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams

@ NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
: 2022 ANNUAL REPORT

2022 2021
4 g
10,691 836 1,173,146
810,191 817,356
17,743,539
29,245,566 1,990,502
2022 2021
a o
8,557,741 8,236,211
60,000 50,000
bB53.537 1.182.9/5
, 719,500
1,883,000 2,000,000
11,154,278 12,198,696
2023 2021
5 5
18 833,789 5,657,473
1.08% 307 1,384,700
15943 0%k 7,042,173
2022 2021
b k1
15817 . 871 15,205, 795
639,572 612,126
16 457 443 15 817,851

™
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

13, Institutional capital

2022 2021
5 5
Retained earnings 27421779 27.421.7714
Statutory resense 42,230,248 40,593 8049
69,652,027 68,015,588
14, Mon-institutional capital
2022 2021
" 5
Scholarship fund resene 70,000 70,000
Promotion 667,157 &6T 1497
Share transfer fund 350,920 116,565
Retirement Benefit Asser Reserve 5447 158 7,139.157
Special reserve 1,350,874 1,350,874
Dividend reseryve 1,195,968 1,194,142
Danation & gifts reserve 2438 57.618
Loan loss reserve 125,835 -
Information technology development &00, 000 600 000
General reserve 300,000 B00, 000
10,610,390 12,195,553
15. Undistributed surplus
2022 2021
» 5
Balance January 1, {6,493 018) (6,402 516}
Surplus/| Deficit) 7.92E.197 (417.503)
Statutory reserve 11,585 6349)
Bad debt reserve (125 E35]
Transfer from retirement benefit rocerge 185, 000 . 327.001
Balance at December 31 {91, 295) (6,493 018)

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

16. Members’ share capital

2022
Within 3 ERT R Cwer 12 Carrying
months months maonths walue
=1 $ § $
200,308 972 4279396 223,351,259 427,939 627
e Ty e T e i R A T e S T R =
2021
Within 3 dtold Ower 12 Carrying
manths manths months value
5 5 5 N
252 630,534 3,886,624 132,155,188 188,672,346
17. External Loans
2022 2021
5 5
amount payable after one year 45 8538 375 22,143 033
Amount payable within one year 3,386,533 2,729,735
45,2 14 908 24 B72 768

This baan is from Credit Unign Fund BManagement Company Limited with the following terms:

Principal - 549, 500,000.00
Interest Rate B %

Repayment period 10 years
Matwrity date November B 2052

Secured by legal mortgage over preperty located at & Trevennion Park Road, Kingston 5,

régistered at Volume 1047 folia 80.

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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18. Members deposits

19,

Regular deposits

Finerd deposiis

Galden harvest deposits
Lanta account

Partner Plan

Inleras] payakle
Advance Protectior

Regular deposits

Fined deposits

Galden harvest deposits
SaNTa aCoount

Partner Plan

Interest payable
Advance Proteciorn

Payables and accruals

Deceased members' balances
Unallocated receipts

Deposit clearing account
Dther accruals

Audit fees

Vacation leawve

Withholding tax payable

54,085, 742
& 1 00

116, F&s

1290653349

7,254,675 -
490,241

218 977,583

136,760,280

e )
Within 3 T to 12 Ower 12 Carmying
mianths mianihs manths walus
I ; 5 3
177,122,494 177,122,494
138 389 076 138 389,076
L2268 542 42,268,542
18, 000 18,03
10,586,993 - 10,586,993
430 188 430, 388
518,611 - 518,611
329 '-].i'.-'_li-!'-.-' 149 405 457 = 379,334,104
: _EQII
Mithin 3 3o l2 Cheer 12 Lanrying
manths manths months value
s 5 5 5
164, 754,072 164,754,072

129 0585 334
54 085, 742
21,000

T.254 675
440,271
116,769

355 737 863

20

5

890,621
545,354
80,938
115 i)
482,999
444,579
614,207
3,174,298

o1

]

890,621
151 343
392,328
120,660
A2 S04

86,538
' L‘l IJ l'l .I La
7.679,119

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

20. Other Incoms

Rental imcome

Galn on valuation of eauwity Instruments
Dividends

Service charge

Laan processing ees

21, Operating sxpeEnses

Porsannel

Pansion

Splarios

ctafl welfare and training
SEAatulory contributlions-prior year
Statutory contributions

Adminigtrative

ALpdit Fees-pxternal
Aipdit Feas-internal
Bank charges

Cleaning & sanitation
Indurdnce prermiums
Depreciation
Electricity

Professional fees

AML BMonitoring
DIfice exXpeEnses
Printing and stationery
Proparty 1ax

Repairs and maintenance
Segurity

Telephone & catble
Travelling

Water

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams

@ NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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2022 2021
5 5
501,049 645,000
237075 (387 a953)
5832 94,247
31,403 192 1,611 444
7,054,130 8,170,877
13,186,128 12,123 615
2022 2021
L g
2,047,532 1,613,286
10,735,809 26,604,814
4,604, 826 2,685,004
2,460,265
3,800,579 _ 3,609,920
41,188 846 36,973,379
2024 2041
4 5
690,000 632,500
977,500 662,025
124,501 286,579
286,761 667,779
4,352 996 4,261,770
3 380,501 2,293,602
1,843 268 1,662 447
FOH). 139 746,250
5375 000 1.462.500
651 315 104,741
542 460 422 307
96,600 a6, 600
2. 308 944 2 ITERE14
180,634 169,724
1,531,748 1,628,272
87,730 30,170
286,701 1,985,035
17,825,798 19,378,015
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21. Operating expenses (cont’d)
2022 2021
5 5
Marketing & promotion 1,370,654 562,735
2022 2021
Representation & affiliation g g
Annual General Meeting 800,205 540,905
League & committee meetings 1,992 803 522 240
League fees and other dues 1,709,318 1,250,674
Stabihization dues 931,003 452 860
Training - 123,438
5,233,329 3,230,117
Total operating expenses 05,918,627 b0, 204,246

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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Report of the Credit Committee

for the Year Ended December 31, 2022

he NAJ & Health Services Co-opera-

I tive Credit Union over the past 46

years has emerged as a strong finan-

cial institution despite the many challenges

faced in the global financial sector which

include wage freeze, high inflation, and

migration. Nevertheless, the Credit grew in
2022.

Members of the Committee are:

B Miss Novlette Arthurs - (Chairperson)
Miss Camille Williams - (Secretary)
Mrs. Dion Murphy Nedrick

Mrs. Maureen Young Sewell

Miss Lorna Calder

The year under review can be described as a
stabilizing period where the country’s macro-
economic outlook was given a positive rating.
This was attributed to the decline in COVID-
19 cases and a return to normalcy within the
productive sector. The Jamaican economy for
the first time was given a B+ rating by both
Standard & Poor and Fitch rating agencies.
However, despite the positive credit ratings
inflation stood at a record high. The chal-
lenges faced by the Jamaican economy also
impacted the approach of members to borrow-
ing. The mission of the Credit Committee is
to ensure members get the best benefit from
products and services offered by the Credit
Union. The Credit Committee is cognizant of

¢
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Novlette Arthurs
Chairperson

the value of the loan products to the Credit
Union and our mission is to grow the loan
portfolio thus increasing the stability and
sustainability of the Credit Union.

The Board of Directors, Management, and
staff sought innovative ways to appeal to
members in its offering of loan products.
There were several loan promotions through-
out the year with attractive and competitive
interest rates. The car loan portfolio was the
most lucrative as members took the opportu-
nity to invest in this product.

Members remained cautious due to the unpre-
dictability of the economy and the spending




> EDIT COMMITTEE
REPORT

power of the Jamaican dollar. The loan port-  total of 398 loans were approved. The follow-
folio remains relatively stable. The Commit-  ing is a breakdown of the loans disbursed dur-
tee meets on our assigned meeting days. A ing the year under review.

Loans Disbursed in 2022
Category of Loans Number of Amount Percentage of
Loans $ Amount %

Medical Expenses 9 4,483.625.53 1.30
Education 7 2,855,775.36 0.83
Purchase Land and Buildings and 15 42,183,007.73 12.19
Home Improvement & Repairs
Consolidation of Debts 4 7,575,441.82 2.19
Vacation & Travel 3 907,386.09 0.26
Household Appliances 4 1,900,000.00 0.55
(Purch/repairs)
Motor Vehicle Purchase/repairs 83 239,105,632.33 69.09
Personal 271 46,395,868.90 13.40
Development of Business 2 655,531.92 0.19

398 346,062,269.68 100.00

Loan Approved for 2022

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
2022 ANNUAL REPORT
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Appreciation

The members of the Committee thank you the
members, the committed employees and es-
pecially our Loans Manager, Miss Renee
Collins, for a harmonious working relation-
ship. Thank you for entrusting us with this
responsibility of loan approval. Finally, we
remain committed to helping members realize
their dreams.” If you devote yourself entirely

to a noble pursuit, there is no way you cannot
find fulfillment.” - Daniel Gillies.

Yours truly

(. At

Novlette Arthurs (Ms.)

Chairperson

Members of the Credit Committee

Mureen Young Sewell

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.

@ Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
2022 ANNUAL REPORT
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

for the Year Ended December 31, 2022

ervice to others is the rent you pay for

your room here on Earth” (Muhammad

Ali). The Supervisory Committee takes
pleasure in honouring the obligation and
vision of the Credit Union while offering safe
products and services to its valued members.
The Supervisory Committee Members were
elected at the 45th Annual General Meeting
of the NAJ & Health Services Co-operative
Credit Union as indicated below:

Miss Bereta Thomas — Chairperson
Mr Dwight Burchell -Secretary
Mrs Shirley Hibbert

Mrs Mendis Dennis-Vincent

Mr Fitzgerald Percy

The Supervisory Committee met monthly and
audit the internal controls of the Credit Union,
against the standards of the Credit Union
League. Nine Meetings were held for the year
under review. The Supervisory Committee
had its challenges; only for the first meeting,
all members of the Committee were present.
Mr Fitzgerald Percy resigned from the Com-
mittee during the second month of serving,
due to work and family obligations. The Com-
mittee membership fell to three as it also lost
Mr. Dwight Burchell due to work commit-
ments. Due to the above challenges, the
Supervisory Committee had to make several

<O

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.

Bereta Thomas
Chairperson

adjustments to facilitate its meetings and
assess if the Credit Union adhered to its
policies and procedures. The Committee
made it its business to review the Credit
Union financial statements, loans and invest-
ment portfolios, and other financial reports,
including the internal audit reports from
Smith and Associates, and the Committee was
quite satisfied that the Credit Union was
maintaining its standards.

Scope of work
The Supervisory Committee maintained the
auditing of the Credit Union’s operations and

¢
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business processes. The following are some
of the areas of auditing that the Committee
focused on:

Bank Reconciliation

Tellers operations

Loan application and approval processes
Cash handling procedures

Surprised cash count

Utility usage patterns

Investment portfolio

Staff interview

Training of staff and volunteers

Variance Budget

Active Accounts

Securities

Debit card payment system

Dormant accounts

Directors and staff accounts

General ledger against members’ ledger
Risk Management

Segregation of staff duties and time and
attendance

Analysis and General Comments

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with
the urgency and emphasis Management
placed on training staff and volunteers. Also,
for the effort placed into forming a Risk Man-
agement Committee to meet the standards of
the Audit Committees and the Credit Union
League and to provide a solid financial foun-
dation and a secure future for members.

The Committee found that based on its audits,
the operations and business of the Credit

¢
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Union were carried out according to estab-
lished policies and procedures. For the year
under review, the Credit Union returned to a
positive position. In 2021 there was a deficit
of $417,503, while in 2022 the audited surplus
is $7,928,197.

Assessment of the Board’s activities showed
that they met monthly and carried out their
roles and functions forcefully. All actions and
decisions taken at monthly and quarterly joint
meetings were documented and implemented
based on policy. As it relates to the future of
the Credit Union it depends on strategies the
CEO, the Board, staff, and volunteers put in
place to increase profit. The Supervisory
Committee commends the Board of Directors
for the strategies implemented to facilitate
corporate governance.

The Credit Committee must also be com-
mended for their stewardship in conducting
the business of the Credit Union according to
standards.

Conclusion

The Supervisory Committee takes pride in
extending gratitude for the privilege to serve
the Credit Union in this capacity. Also, we
extend heartfelt appreciation to the Board of
Directors, Management, staff, and members
of the Credit Union for giving us such a vital
responsibility to serve and protect the integrity
and assets of the Credit Union. This Commit-
tee stands in solidarity with the Credit Union

<>
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to continue the observance of excellent fiscal
policies and procedures to achieve improved
performance in 2023.

Yours sincerely

Vann
/ C VLD WA

Bereta Thomas (Ms.)

Chairperson

Members of the Supervisory Committee

Mendis Dennis-Vincent

Dwight Burchell

Shirley Hibbert

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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Treasurer’s Report

for the Year Ended December 31, 2022

ith much optimism, I present the
Treasurer’s Report at this our 46th
Annual General meeting. Despite

the challenging economic climate, our Credit
Union experienced a financially successful
year of operation. Thanks to our valued Credit
Union members for their unwavering support
which impacted positively during 2022. This
augurs well for the continued success of our
Credit Union.

External

The Jamaican economy grew by 5.2 percent

during 2022 relative to 2021. This growth re-

flects a continuation of the economic recovery
following the negative impact of COVID-19
in 2020. The improved economy was influ-
enced by some positive developments within
the local and global economy. These included:

B Increased external demand for Jamaica’s
goods and services as the economies of its
trading partners improved.

B Greater domestic demand due to an
increase in the average employed labour
force.

B Increased business and consumer confi-
dence.

The Bank of Jamaica during 2022 continued
to execute its 2021 to 2023 strategic plan. This
plan has three areas of focus. These are: (i)
supporting the achievement of the Bank’s

¢
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Barrington Hibbert
Treasurer

primary mandate, which is to maintain price
stability and financial system stability; (i1)
digital transformation, which 1is geared
towards upgrading processes to improve
efficiency, thereby improving service delivery
to both internal and external stakeholders; and
(ii1) culture transformation, which is geared
towards ensuring that the workforce is en-
gaged and that operations are grounded in the
Bank’s core values.

Domestic inflation trended above the upper
end of the Bank’s target of 4.0 percent to 6.0
percent throughout the year. It peaked at 11.8
percent in April and trended down to 9.4 per-
cent at the end of December 2022. This




upward trend in inflation was attributed to the
ongoing conflict between Russia and Ukraine
which caused increases in international com-
modity and shipping prices. To guide
inflation back within the target in the near
term, the Bank tightened its monetary policy
stance by increasing the policy interest rate
cumulatively by 450 basis points to 7.00 per-
cent per annum.

The Jamaican Dollar depreciated on an annual
average basis by 1.8 percent against the US
dollar for 2022, compared to an annual aver-
age of 5.9 percent for 2021. The relative
stability in the foreign exchange market was
facilitated by improved foreign exchange

: » TREASURER'S
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inflows associated with the reopening of the
economy as well as the Bank of Jamaica
Foreign Exchange Intervention at strategic
periods.

Jamaica Credit Union Movement

The Movement recorded an increase in
savings by 7.7 percent while loans increased
by 18.6 percent. Total assets grew by 7.4
percent. There was also an overall increase in
membership by 0.5 percent (Table 1). The
improved performance was facilitated by the
increase in membership as well as Jamaica’s
improved economic performance.

Table 1: Performance of the Jamaica Credit Union Movement

Performance 2022 2021 Variance %
$Billion $Billion $Billion
Savings 125.7 116.72 9.0 7.7
Loans 108.7 91.60 17.1 18.6
Assets 161.6 150.40 11.3 7.4
Membership 1,005,382 1,000,157 5225 0.5
Our Credit Union in 2021. The reversal was facilitated by the

Financial Performance

The Credit Union recorded a surplus of
$7, 928,197 compared to a deficit of $417,503

<

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.

waning impact of COVID-19 which gave rise
to an increase in economic activities which
had a positive impact on our credit union.

¢
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Table 2: Summary of Income Statements 2022 & 2021

Interest Income 68.6 59.7 8.9 14.9
Less: Interest 12.6 11.7 0.9 7.7
Expenses

Net Interest 56.1 48.1 8.0 16.6
Income

Add other 12.2 12.1 0.1 0.8
Income

Goss Margin 73.8 59.8 14.0 234
Less: Operating 65.9 60.2 5.7 9.5
Expenses

Surplus/(Loss) 7.9 0.4) 8.3 2075.0

Interest Income — Interest income increased
by 14.9 percent to $68.6 million. The interest
income recorded in 2021 was $59.7 million.

Interest Expenses — In tandem with the
growth in interest income, income expenses
expanded to $12.6 million from $11.7 million
in 2021. This reflected a 7.7 percent increase
in interest expenses.

Other Income — Other income was relatively
flat at $12.2 million compared with $12.1

§¢
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million In 2021. Other Income comprised
mainly fees from loans.

Operating Expenses — Operating expenses
for 2022 were $65,918,627 million compared
with $60,204,246 in the previous year. The
main components of Operating Expenses
were (a) Personnel Costs which increased to
$41.2 million from $37.0 million in 2021, and
(b) Administrative expenses which were
reduced to $17.8 million from $19.4 million
in 2021.

b
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Table 3: Summary of Balance Sheet Items
for the past Two Years

2022 2021 Variance %
$Million $Million $Million Change

Total Assets 956.3 861.8 94.5 11.0
Members Share 4279 388.7 39.2 10.1
Loans to 766.4 639.0 127.4 19.9
Members
Member 379.3 355.7 23.6 6.6
Deposits
Financial 76.0 144.6 -68.6 -47.4
Investments
Institutional 69.7 68.0 1.72 2.5
Capital

Total Assets - Total Assets as at December 31,
2022, increased by 11.0 percent to $956.3 mil-
lion from $861.8 million in 2021. The level of
increase in assets exceeded the 2022 inflation
rate of 9.4 percent.

Members’ Shares increased by 10.1 percent
to $427.9 million from $388.7 million in
2021

Loans recorded an increase of 19.9 percent
which compares favourably with the 18.7 per-
cent achieved by the Jamaica Credit Union
Movement. For 2022, loans increased to
$766.4 million from $639.0 million in 2021.

<
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Deposits grew by 6.6 percent to $379.3 mil-
lion. In 2021 Deposits stood at $355.7 million.

Financial Investments declined by 47.4
percent to $76.0 million from $144.6 million
in 2021. This was due to an increase in the
demand for loan funds.

Institutional Capital increased by 2.5 per-
cent to $69.7 million from $68.0 million in
2021.

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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Delinquency

Total delinquent loans at the end of December
2022 stood at $5.4 million. Of this total, $3.6
million or 68 percent fell within the category

4-6 Months and 7-12 Months 5 percent. $1.5
million or 27 percent fell in the Over 12
Months category.

W 4-6 mths

5%

Delinquent Loans

B 7-12 mths

over 12 mths

The Way Forward

As we continue to strive for excellence, the
Board of Management and staff remain com-
mitted to sound fiscal management. The year
2022 was not without challenges but we were
able to weather the storm. Just over two per-
cent growth is projected for the Jamaican
economy in 2023 and inflation is expected to
return to the 4-6 percent target by the Govern-
ment. With the support of all our members, we
look forward to increasing the total assets of
our Credit Union.

Acknowledgment
I take this opportunity to express my deepest
appreciation to the management and staff for
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their continued commitment and dedication to
the work of the Credit Union. Special thanks
also to our valued members who continue to
support the Credit Union and without whom,
we could not have achieved success in 2022.
I also express appreciation to my fellow
Board members and other volunteers for a job
well done. Finally, special thanks to Bogle
and Company, our External Auditors, for their
contribution to the Credit Union.

Yours sincerely
et 1 I_.
Vi L AL {

Barrington Hibbert (Mr.)

Treasurer
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Proposal for Fixing
of Maximum Liability

for the Year Ended December 31, 2022

It is proposed that the Maximum Liability to December 31, 2022 remains at 16 times the Capital
and Reserves.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
LAridldad

Barrington Hibbert(Mr.)

Treasurer

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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NOMIINATING

Report of the Nominating Commitfee

for the Year Ended December 31, 2022

he Board of Directors of NAJ &

I Health Services Co-operative Credit
Union Limited appointed a Nominat-

ing Committee in accordance with the provi-
sions of Article XII, Rule 63. The Committee
is comprised of three members of which not
more than one should be a member of the

existing Board of Directors. The following are
the Committee members:

B Shailee Neish - Chairperson

(Board of Directors)
B Tyrese Sterling — Delinquency Officer
B Novlette Arthurs - Credit Committee Shailee Neish

Chairperson

The Committee met to consider all retiring
members from the Board of Directors, Super- g g arrington Hibbert
visory, and Credit Committee and to make
nominations for the position that will become
vacant at the 46th Annual General Meeting.

B Nadine Anderson Lawrence

Nominations

The Committee nominates the following four
persons to serve once more on the Board of
Directors for the term indicated:

The Committee is pleased to present the fol-
lowing report:

1. Board of Directors ' B Audric McNab - 2 years
The status of the members of the Board is as B Claudia Wallen - 2 years

follows: B Barrington Hibbert - 2 years

N , B Nadine Anderson Lawrence - 2 years
Members retiring at this Annual General

Meeting - 2022

B Audrie McNab
B Claudia Wallen

¢

2. Supervisory Committee

The status of the Supervisory Committee is as
follows:

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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Members retiring at this Annual General
Meeting — 2022

B Bereta Thomas

B Shirley Hibbert

B Dwight Burchell

B Mendis Dennis-Vincent

B Fitzgerald Percy

Nominations

The Committee nominates the following five
persons to serve on the Supervisory Commit-
tee for the term indicated:

B Bereta Thomas - 1 year
B Shirley Hibbert - 1 year
B Mendis Dennis-Vincent - 1 year
B Dwight Burchell - 1 year
B Racquel Easington-Sewell - 1 year

3. Credit Committee
The status of the Credit Committee is as fol-
lows:

> NOMINATING

OMMITTEE REPORT

Members retiring at this Annual General
Meeting — 2022

B Dion Murphy-Nedrick

B Mureen Young-Sewell

B Camille Williams

Nominations

The Committee nominates the following three
persons to serve once more on the Credit
Committee for the term indicated:

B Dion Murphy-Nedrick - 2 years
B Mureen Young-Sewell - 2 years
B Camille Williams - 2 years

Co-operatively Yours
¥

qd!
AL

Shailee Neish (Ms.)

Chairperson

Members of the Nominating Committee

]

Tyrese Sterling

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.

.

Novlette Arthurs
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he Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union

League (JCCUL) held its first fully in

person annual convention and 81st
annual general meeting, since the start of the
pandemic, at the Ocean Coral Spring hotel in
Trelawny from June 17 to 22,2022. The con-
vention was held jointly with the Caribbean
Confederation of Credit Unions (CCCU), cel-
ebrating their 50-year anniversary, at their 64th
annual international convention and attracted
attendees from credit unions across seventeen
(17) Caribbean countries. The theme for the
joint convention was ‘Innovation, Integration,
Next Generational Leadership’.

JCCUL’s Annual General Meeting, held on
June 18, 2022 under the theme ‘Developing
Credit Unions Building Jamaica’, was
attended by approximately one hundred and
forty-five (145) delegates, alternate delegates
and observers from Jamaica’s credit unions.

The schedule of activities for the joint con-
vention included an opening ceremony, a
trade show, reception and workshops. A
description of the activities are below.

Friday, June 17

The following activities took place:

B CEO Roundtable/Managers’ Forum
Credit Union Managers and League CEOs
benefitted from six (6) presentations regarding
the status of the credit union movement and
ideas to grow and strengthen the movement.

Saturday, June 18 — June 21

Participants enjoyed varied presentations
aimed at aiding credit unions with deciding
their strategic direction and business focus to

¢
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ensure the growth and continuity of their
credit union.

Saturday, June 18

JCCUL’s Annual General Meeting
Approximately one hundred and forty-five
(145) credit union delegates attended the 81st
annual general meeting.

President Mr. Lambert Johnson, chaired the
meeting. He welcomed the participants and
then gave a summary of the Board report for
the year 2021. All other reports including that
from the Treasurer, the Supervisory and Nom-
inating Committees, as well as the audited
financial statements were presented.

Distribution of Surplus

The Delegates agreed to the distribution of the
surplus of two hundred and seventeen million
and nine hundred thousand dollars ($217.9

million).

The Delegates voted for the maximum liabil-
ity of the League to be set at $5 billion.

Election of Officers
The Meeting voted to accept the nominations

for the following persons to fill vacancies on
the JCCUL Board.

Name Credit Union Category
Martin Blackwood |Portland CU Managers Rep
Andrea Messam Broadcast & Allied Small
Alexander Bourne | Manchester Medium
Patrick Smith JTA At Large
Winston Fletcher | EduCom At Large
Ryan Muir Lascelles Employees & |[At Large

Partners
Bornette Donaldson| C&WJ Large

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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Rule Changes
There were no rule changes.

JCCUL Executive
Following the AGM the executive was elected
to serve on the League Board for the 2022-

2023 year:

B Lambert Johnson President

B Andrea Wilson-Messam st Vice President
B O’Neil Grant 2nd Vice President
B Norris Gilbert Treasurer

B Ryan Muir Assistant Treasurer
B Lt Col. Michael Anglin Secretary

B Alexander Bourne Assistant Secretary

4TS - JCCUL 81ST

NERAL MEETING

Martin Blackwood
Brenda Cuthbert
Bornette Donaldson
Winston Fletcher
Jerry Hamilton
Anthony McLaughlin
Patrick Smith

Hector Stephenson

The convention ended officially on Tuesday
June 21, 2022 with a Grand Finale Ball.
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he NAJ & Health Services Co-operative
Credit Union Limited 45th Annual
General Meeting was held on Saturday, July
9, 2022 at the office of the Jamaica
Co-operative Credit Union League on

Mr. Jeremy-Paul Bennett (JCIA), speaks with
Ms. Annie-Kay Gray, Administrative Assistant-
NAJHSCU as he registers for the 45th AGM.

Members in attendance follow in their 2021 Annual
Report booklet while Ms. Doreen Cushnie, Board of
Directors secretary, reads through the Minutes.

Ms. Beretta Thomas (standing) makes a
point during the corrections of the Minutes.

14
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Manhattan Road, Kingston 5. This first

hybrid meeting was well attended. Prizes were
awarded to members who participated in pop
quiz about the Credit Union and its services.
See pictorial highlights below.

Accountant at NAJ & HSCCU, Farr presents
Ms. Vivienne Wallace, prays
for the success of the AGM.

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams

President, Mrs. Janett Coore-
the report for the
Board of Directors.

Mr. Derrick Tulloch, Treasurer, discusses a matter in
the 2021 Annual Report with Ms. Doreen Cushnie,
after her presentation of the Minutes.

President, Mrs.
Patsy Edwards-
Henry, brings greet-
ings on behalf of
the NAJ. At right,
Mrs. Georgia Mor-
rison, Assistant
Vice President
brings greetings on
behalf of CUNA
Caribbean.




.S - 45TH ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING
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Members listens attentively while Ms. Bereta

Thomas makes her presentation from the Supervisory Ms. Bereta Thomas, Chairman of the Supervisory com-
Committee. mittee makes her presentation.

Mr. Thomas Wint of Bogle and Mr. Robin Levy, Group CEO of JCCUL,

Company, Chartered Account- makes a point regarding the Treasurer’s 7 '
ants, gives his overview of the Report. g . = Mrs. Sheryll Brown from DCFS

Audited Financial Statements. greets the AGM and guides the
nominating process.

Dr. Desreen Marquis, CEO of the NAJ &
o HSCCU presents the names of the volun-
Treasurer, Mr. Derrick teers being nominated, while technical

Mr. Egon Fagan, seeks clarification on  Tyjloch, makes note of
a point made by Mr. Derrick Tullock Mr. Fagan’s query while

during the Treasurer’s Report. making his presentation.

support, Mr. Dwayne Wright, assists in
bring up the information.

‘Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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Ms. Doreen Cushnie, Secretary of the NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Board of Directors,
makes presentations to members who participated in the activities during the AGM. (L-R): Ms. Elvira Austin,
employee of the Credit Union and Ms. Shailee Neish, member.

Ms. Doreen Cushnie presents prizes to members who partcipated in the activity session, during the AGM.
From (l-r) are: Ms. Vera Lindo, Mr. Egon Fagan and Mr. Dwayne Wright.

Mrs. Janett Coore-Farr, President of the NAJ &
Health Services Co-operative Credit Union, presents
Mrs. Constance Roberts-Perkins with her gift as a
token of appreciation for her services to the Credit
Union.

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.

@ Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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Mrs. Janett Coore-Farr, hands Mr. Derrick Tulloch a gift
on behalf of the NAJ & Health Services CCU in appreci-
ation of his service as Treasurer to the Credit Union.
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MOTOR VEHICLE
LOAN SPECIAL
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Interest Rate : 6.5% - 7.35%
Year: 2013 - NEW

Terms : 4 - 10 years to repay
Fees slashed

GET THAT DREAM CAR OR JUST A CAR
FOR [HRISTMAS
FROM MOW TIL ANUARY 31 2021
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“Helping you 1o realize your dreams”

INTRODUCING OUR ALL NEW

REWARD
FROM

15-85%

OF HAND

‘Payment krequency is weekly, monthly or forfmightly only
Payments mus! be made belore the agreed day of n?;'
week/lortnightly/monthly in ovder 1o avord penaihes.

CEEED) @nainsceu
Addigds: B Trévdnneon Park Road. Hlﬁgﬂnn L
Tal: (BNG) S29-0000; 906-1235-6
Email: naj@najhscou.com
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YOUR CREDIT UNION GIVES YOU A BETTER WAY TO BORROW

Life Can Be Unpredictable...
DID YOU KNOW that your Credit Union...

INSURES YOUR LOANS AND SAVINGS?

e
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LOAN PROTECTION
LIFE SAVINGS INSURANGE

Ywhin you taks a loan fram your
Crasdil Linion, it is sals, sacure
guaraniess greal rales and includes
e @] prolechon of Like Sa Wi
and Loan Prodection ingurancg... all
&1 o axira cost!

LOAN PROTECTION INSURANCE

Cwur Loan Protection Insurance is a safety net
for you our members. 1 pays the oulstanding
balance on your lpan if you die or become
tatally or permanantly disable, thereby providing
peace ol minel Tor the member. B msmbe's
tamily and the co-makérs against the burdén

of any unpaid laans

LIFE SAVINGS INSURANCE

As an added benefit to you and at no extra cost,
we also fop up the legacy you leave your loved
ones upon your death. Lite Savings Insurance
provides you with insurance that increases your

savings in the Credit Union

W A Wi R T TS S IS IR P i e
cerfadnly halp the fnancial strain — jusf for enoe,

This benelif Is availabie io 2l our members peace of ménd thal doss nol coumse 3l B price
under the sge of 70,

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
" Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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PAY DAY LOANS ARE NOW
AVAILABLE TO GET YOU GOING

MEMBERS CAN ACCESS FROM
= ACCESS 10 TIMES
$50,000 - $100,000 YOUR SHARE AMOUNT

REPLACEMENT PERICD &6 MONTHS

“Dont Dream
It HAVE It"

7.5% 8w

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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The Prayer of
St. Francis of Assissi

Lord, make me an instrument of thy peace
Where there is hatred, let me show love
Where there is injury, pardon
Where there is doubt, faith
Where there is despair, hope
Where there is darkness, light
And where there is sadness, joy

O Divine Master, grant that | may not so much seek
To be consoled as to console
To be understood, as to understand
To be loved as to love
For it is in giving that we receive

It is pardoning that we are pardoned

And it is in dying that we are born to eternal life.

o /

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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National Anthem

Eternal Father, bless our Land
Guide us with Thy mighty hand
Keep us free from evil powers
Be our light through countless hours
To our leaders, Great Defender
Grant true wisdom from above
Justice, truth be ours forever
Jamaica, Land we love.

Chorus:
Jamaica, Jamaica
Jamaica, Land we love

Teach us true respect for all
Stir response to duty’s call
Strengthen us, the weak to cherish
Give us vision, lest we perish
Knowledge send us, Heavenly Father
Grant true wisdom from above
Justice, truth be ours forever
Jamaica. Land we love.

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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HOME ® OFFICE ® AUTO
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NAJ Credit Union
* Home Loan- 6.99%

« Home Equity Loan- 7.99%

* Land Acquisition Loan- 10.99%
* Motor Vehicle Loan- 6.5%

Smart Spaces and
Surveillance Systems

* Up to 50% discount on
smart home and security
systems

* Free Installation

Calr: 876-929-0070
WhatsApp: 876-832-0872

Qe Trevennion Park Road
Kingston &

*Terms and conditions apply

Alarms, Cameras, Locks,
Automatic Gate Openers,

Wifi Door Locks and
Energy Saving Plugs.
o=876-878-6605

msmartspacesja@gmail.com
=) _smart_spaces

- %1 NAJ & HEALTH SERVICES
\' CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION

“Helping you to reciize your dreoms™

NAJ & Health Services
Co-operative Credit Union Limited

For life’s unexpected challenges,
take it easy with our

CASH IN A FLASH LOAN

Repay within

$200,000 24 Months

Monthly Repayment

$200,000 24 Months $10,081.72

YOU DON'T NEED
roworry | APPROVED!

Repayment via Salary Deductions

B2 Easy |4 Quick [4 Hassle Free our| DO @O snopsccu
Contact | (B (876) 929-0070; 906-1235-6
Details: @ nojangjhsccucom

o‘:dg:’g: | @ 6 Trevennion Pork Road, Kingston 5.




NAJ & Health Services
Co-operative Credit Union Limited
6 Trevennion Park Road, Kingston 5

Tel: (876) 929-0070






